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Dear Shareholders, 
It gives me immense pleasure to share our 38th 
Annual Report for the Financial year ending March 31, 
2024.  Your continued support and collaboration are 
invaluable as we navigate another year of growth and 
opportunities. The global economy witnessed a      
gradual recovery from the pandemic’s aftershock in 
the year 2023. This was despite some persistent        
challenges such as rising inflation, geopolitical 
tensions and supply chain disruptions. However, the 
resilience and adaptability of industries paved the way 
for cautious optimism. On the domestic front, India 
emerged as a bright spot, exhibiting robust economic 
growth. This can be attributed to strong domestic 
demand, policy reforms and an investor-friendly 

climate. We are inspired by the vibrant spirit of our 
customers and are motivated by the pursuit of fulfilling 

their financial aspirations.  It is a privilege to be a part of their 
journey, contributing to their dreams and aspirations. 

I am pleased to inform you that despite headwinds in the financial markets, we achieved substantially higher 
disbursements under the loan portfolio at Rs. 235.5 Cr. leading to a total AUM of Rs. 129.97 Cr. as on 31st March 
2024 compared to Rs. 61.06 Cr. as of 31st March, 2023. Revenue from operations has recorded an increase to 
Rs. 25.85 Cr. in Financial Year 2024 from Rs. 12.11 Cr. in the Financial Year 2023. Also, the EBITDA has increased 
from Rs. 7.10 Cr. in the Financial year 2023 to Rs. 13.03 Cr. in the Financial year 2024. The net profit in the    
Financial year 2024 is 0.55 Cr. On the asset quality, our asset quality remained robust with a Gross and Net 
NPA was 0.40% and 0.24% respectively as on 31st March 2024. 

This demonstrates our commitment to delivering sustainable shareholder value, driven by our robust risk 
management practices, continuous operational improvements, and customer-centric approach. These 
efforts fosters trust and loyalty, positioning us for continued growth and leadership in the NBFC sector.  
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Amidst the volatilities in the current  market and interest rate environment, our priorities remain focused on 
sustainable growth and profitability while maintaining asset quality and a healthy capital adequacy ratio. 

Our Company’s collective efforts through the diverse range of offerings and an extensive network of branch-

es across the country help differentiate us.  At present, the company has various portfolios such as Gold Loan, 

Auto Loan, Micro Finance, Business Loan etc.  For empowerment of Women, we had started Microfinance 

loans to Women Joint Liability Groups and plan to extend this on a larger scale.  We are actively increasing 

our footprints in Kerala and metro cities like Mumbai, Bangalore and to other States.  Today, we have 66 

branches of which 16 are in Maharashtra, 34 are in different districts of Kerala, 15 in Karnataka and 1 in Tamil 

Nadu. We will be opening 6 more branches in coming months and will have 72 branches in total by the end 

of this financial year.  We are expanding the Branch network in a phased manner.  

We are proud to announce that our commitment to fostering a positive work culture has been recognized 

and our organisation has been certified as a ‘Great Place to Work’. We are also certified as ISO 9001:2015, an 

international standard for quality management systems (QMS) which is the most widely used QMS standard 

in the world. Going forward, with the expansion plans in place, we expect bright prospects for the company 

through higher loan disbursements, revenue and profits.

 I would like to express our gratitude to the shareholders for their unrelenting support in the affairs of the 

company. I would also like to thank all our employees for their dedication and support in taking the                     

organisation to greater heights. We thank our other stakeholders including Customers, Bankers and            

business associates who continuously support the organization. 

Your Company remains very excited about its long-term growth prospects. As we look ahead, we are aware 

of the myriad opportunities that unfold before us. The dynamic landscape of the financial industry presents 

challenges and possibilities and we are eager to capitalise on these moments of growth and innovation. We 

shall remain committed to continuous transformation, excellent customer service and fostering a supportive 

and dynamic work environment, all leading to higher stakeholder value. 

We shall continue to pursue our mission of creating values through inclusiveness and exclusivity.  I have no 

doubt that with all your continued support we will scale new heights in the years to come. On behalf of the 

board, I once again thank each and every one of you and truly appreciate your confidence in the Company.  

We look forward to your continued support in the days ahead. 
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Joby George 

Chairman & Managing Director



Joby George, Chairman & Managing Director of Supra Pacific, is a dynamic leader in the financial marketing 
space. With a passion for coordinating and leading teams, George has honed his skills over more than 20 
years of experience in the industry. As an Arts Graduate, he brings a unique perspective to the table, setting 
him apart as a strong marketing professional.

With a wealth of experience in developing marketing teams for various financial businesses, George has a 
proven track record of success. He has held responsible positions in leading financial service industries, 
where he has been instrumental in the development of many nonbanking financial institutions in South 
India. His excellent communication skills and great convincing ability make it easy for his team to follow the 
strategy, and his commitment to delivering results has made him a respected leader in the industry.

Throughout his career, George has demonstrated exceptional leadership abilities and an unwavering          
commitment to his responsibilities. His adaptability and ability to handle multiple tasks make him a valuable 
asset to any team, while his cheerful disposition and excellent service spirit have earned him the admiration 
of colleagues and clients alike.

Mr. Joby George
Chairman & Managing Director

Abidh Abubakkar is a seasoned professional with over 17 years of rich and diverse experience in the financial 
services sector. He served key roles with MNCs like MetLife India Insurance, ING Vysya Life Insurance & Exide 
Life Insurance company. With a robust skill set and a proven track record, he has excelled in various key areas 
including Business Development, Strategic Planning, Marketing, Agency Development, Financial Planning, 
Product Development, and Team Management. Abidh brings a wealth of expertise in Business                             
Development, where he has demonstrated a keen understanding of market dynamics and client needs. 
Lastly, Abidh's experience in Team Management is characterized by his leadership skills and ability to nurture 
a high-performing team. 

Abidh holds a Master of Business Administration (MBA) degree with a dual specialization in Finance and      
Marketing. This academic foundation has equipped him with a strong theoretical framework, complementing 
his extensive practical experience in the financial services arena. In summary, Abidh Abubakkar emerges as 
a dynamic professional with a distinguished career trajectory, underpinned by his expertise in Business 
Development, Strategic Planning, Marketing, Agency Development, Financial Planning, Product                       
Development, and Team Management. 

Mr. Abidh Abubakkar
Executive Director 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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Sandeep Babu is a distinguished professional with over two decades of extensive experience in the financial 
industry. He began his illustrious career with one of India's leading non-banking financial companies and 
since then, he has held significant roles in some of the country's top NBFCs, contributing to various strategic 
departments.

Sandeep's career is marked by a robust skill set in critical areas. He excels in building and nurturing a network 
of agents, ensuring they are well-equipped and motivated to achieve their targets and contribute to the 
company's growth. His adeptness at formulating long-term strategic plans that align with the company’s 
vision has been crucial in navigating market challenges and capitalizing on emerging opportunities.

With a keen eye for developing innovative financial products, Sandeep meets market needs and drives      
business growth. Sandeep has successfully managed to position and strengthen the brand presence of the 
companies he has worked with, ensuring a strong market reputation.

He has played a crucial role in identifying and exploiting new business opportunities, leading to significant 
company growth and expansion. Known for his ability to build and lead high-performing teams, Sandeep 
fosters a collaborative and productive work environment. Holding a post-graduate degree in Marketing, 
Sandeep possesses a wealth of expertise and knowledge, making him exceptionally well-equipped.

As the Director of Supra Pacific Financial Services Limited and Centreal Bazaar India Limited Sandeep leads 
by example, propelling these organizations toward greater heights. His leadership and vision makes him a 
source of inspiration for his colleagues and peers.

Mr. Sandeep Babu
Non-Executive Director

Business leader & corporate professional with demonstrated skills in initiative,creativity and success in the 
domain of Business Development, Business Planning, Corporate Sales & Marketing, Human resources, and 
Team Management, Mr Manoj started his career with healthcare industry in 1994 ,and moved on to financial
sector by 2006.

Since 2006, he had associated with various financial institutions such as HDFC Life, Muthoot Fincorp,      
Manappuram Finance and Maxvalue Credits in the senior Leadership Roles looking after Pan India                     
operations. From 2020 onwards he is associated with Centreal Multitrade India Pvt Ltd (Subsidiary of Centreal 
Bazaar) as Managing Director.

He is also the Executive Director of Centreal Bazaar India Limited. Currently holding the Role Managing 
Director of Southern Multi state Credit&Multi Purpose Society.

Key areas of expertise of Mr. Manoj includes Utilising extensive quantitative & qualitative analytical                      
capabilities to enhance operational effectiveness within the cost, time & quality parameters, Building              
immediate rapport with clients & service teams and leading teams towards the achievement of                             
organisational goals and industry best practices

Mr. Manoj K 
Non-Executive Director
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Mr. Joly Sebastian is a Dedicated Banker retired from South Indian Bank as the Head of Government             
Business Department, has a long history of meeting corporate goals to enhance the organizational branding. 
During his long stint in SIB, he headed various metro branches PAN India, three major regions of the Bank 
and spearheaded the Government Business Department of SIB, which witnessed a turnaround during his 
tenure with exponential growth and outperformed its peers. He is eager to adapt new situations and             
challenges.

He is a Certified Associate of Indian Institute of Banking and Finance (CAIIB) and completed professional 
certification in Advanced Financial Risk Management (AFRM) from IIM Kozhikode. Also, completed Certifica-
tion Program in IT and Cyber Security from IDRBT - RBI. He participated in various leadership enhancement 
programmes conducted by RBI, NIBM and IIM.  Independent Director of Centreal Bazaar India Limited, 
Member of Independent Directors Data Bank of Ministry of Corporate Affairs, GOI.

Mr. Joly Sebastian
Independent Director

With over 40 years of experience in the banking industry, Murali N A offers his expertise and guidance to      
navigate Supra Pacific towards steady growth and success. With a degree in MCom and a JAIIB certification, 
he brings a wealth of knowledge and expertise to his role as Director of Supra Pacific. 

Throughout his career, Murali has worked in leading banks such as Federal Bank, South Indian Bank, and 
Esaf Bank, where he held senior positions and made significant contributions to the growth and success of 
the organizations.

Murali's extensive experience in the banking industry, particularly in areas such as retail and wholesale        
lending, financial investments, funds management, forex management, FEMA compliance, and asset                   
liability management, has made him an expert in his field. He played a key role in setting up Esaf Small 
Finance Bank and held the position of Senior Vice President and Head of Treasury.

Currently, Murali is engaged as Chief Management Adviser in a multi-state cooperative credit society and 
serves as an independent director in Centreal Bazaar India Ltd, a supermarket chain. 

Mr. Murali N A
Independent Director 
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CS Anvar is a highly accomplished and dedicated Company Secretary, recognized as a Fellow Member of the 
Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI). With over a decade of specialized experience, he has carved 
a niche in the field of corporate law and governance. His expertise encompasses critical areas such as           
company incorporation, corporate secretarial advisory, and regulatory compliance, making him a trusted 
authority for companies navigating complex legal landscapes. 

Throughout his career, CS Anvar has gained extensive proficiency in drafting and executing LLP agreements, 
conducting secretarial audits, and performing thorough due diligence for business transactions. His                 
expertise in internal audits ensures that companies remain compliant with the highest governance              
standards, fostering transparency and  accountability. 

In addition to his strong foundation in corporate law, CS Anvar is well-versed in GST, FEMA, and RBI                   
regulations, enabling him to effectively liaise between companies and regulatory bodies. His ability to               
interpret and apply these complex regulations ensures that businesses stay compliant and thrive in today’s 
dynamic legal environment. CS Anvar’s commitment to providing tailored solutions and his  collaborative 
approach have made him a key asset to clients across various industries. His deep understanding of evolving 
regulatory frameworks and unwavering focus on excellence help ensure that Supra Pacific remains at the 
forefront in maintaining compliance and governance standards. He is also a Governing Board Member of the 
People’s Mediation  Society, an NGO dedicated to promoting mediation.

Mr. CS Anvar
Independent Director

Dhanya Jose is a seasoned professional and a trailblazer in the corporate sector. With a law degree from 
Kerala University and a Fellow of ICSI, she brings a unique combination of legal expertise and business 
acumen to her role as Director of Supra Pacific. With over 12 years of experience in a variety of industries 
including IT, ITes, tourism, construction, trust, and plantations, Dhanya has held top management positions 
in different organizations and has a proven track record of success. Dhanya's expertise in Due Diligence sets 
her apart from others in her field. Her ability to analyze and evaluate complex situations, combined with her 
strategic thinking, has helped her navigate challenging environments and make well-informed decisions. 
Her broad experience in both the public and private sectors has given her a well-rounded perspective on the 
corporate world and has helped her build a reputation as a trusted and effective leader.

As the Director of Supra Pacific, Dhanya brings her wealth of experience and expertise to the table. Her ability 
to inspire and motivate her team, combined with her exceptional leadership skills, make her an invaluable 
asset to the organization. 

Mrs. Dhanya Jose
Independent Director
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EMERGING KERALA
We were honoured to receive a souvenir titled "Emerging 
NBFC India" from Hon. Smt. Nirmala Sitharaman, the 
Minister of Finance, Govt. of India which inspired us in our 
way forward to become a PAN India entity in the NBFC 
industry.

GREAT PLACE TO WORK
We are proud to announce that our commitment to 
fostering a positive work culture has been recognized, and 
our organisation has been certified as a Great Place to 
Work®. This acknowledgment reflects the collaborative 
effort in creating an environment where everyone feels 
valued, empowered, and motivated.  The certificate is 
valid till November 2024 and subject to renewal thereafter.

ISO 9001:2015
We have been certified as ISO 9001:2015, an international 
standard for quality management systems (QMS) which is 
most widely used QMS standard in the world. ISO 9001 is a 
quick and easy way for potential consumers to see if the 
company has put the time and effort into making sure the 
products or services is the best it can possibly be. 

JWALA AWARDS
We have also been recognised in Jwala 2024 Awards by 
Hon’ble Padmasree Bharath Mammootty.
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Type of 
shareholder
s 

 Login Method 

 
Individual 
Shareholders 
holding 
securities in 
Demat mode 
with CDSL 

1.Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login 
through their existing user id and password. Option will be made 
available to reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. 
The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest are 
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or visit  
www.cdslindia.com and click on Login icon and select New System 
Myeasi. 

2.After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the 
e-Voting option for eligible companies where the e-voting is in 
progress as per the information provided by company. On clicking the 
e-voting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-
Voting service provider for casting your vote during the remote e-
Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 
Additionally, there is also links provided to access the system of all e-
Voting Service Providers i.e. CDSL/NSDL/KARVY/LINKINTIME, so that 
the user can visit the e-Voting service providers’ website directly. 

3.If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is 
available at 
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistra
tion 

4.Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by 
providing Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link 
available on  www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will 
authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as 
recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, user 
will be able to see the e-Voting option where the e-voting is in progress 
and also able to directly access the system of all e-Voting Service 
Providers. 

 
Individual 
Shareholders 
holding 
securities in 
demat mode 
with NSDL 

1. If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the 
e-Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following 
URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or 
on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click on 
the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under 
‘IDeAS’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your 
User ID and Password. After successful authentication, you will be able 
to see e-Voting services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting 
services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company 
name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be re-directed to 
e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the 
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the 
meeting. 

 



2. If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register 
is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online 
for IDeAS “Portal or click   at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp  

3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 
following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is 
launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to 
enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold 
with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the 
screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL 
Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company 
name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to 
e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the 
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the 
meeting. 

Individual 
Shareholders 
(holding 
securities in 
demat mode) 
login through 
their 
Depository 
Participant
s 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account 
through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-
Voting facility.  After Successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting 
option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to 
NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you 
can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service 
provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider 
website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or 
joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

  
 
Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to 
use Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at above mentioned website. 

 
 
Help desk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any 
technical issues related to login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL 

     
Login type Helpdesk details 
Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in Demat mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login 
can contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a 
request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or 
contact at 022- 23058738 and 22-23058542-
43. 
  

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in Demat mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login 
can contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a 
request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll 
free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30  
  

  
 









If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the CDSL e-
Voting System, you can write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 
022- 23058738 and 022-23058542/43. 
 
All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed 
to Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, Sr. Manager, (CDSL) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A 
Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower 
Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013 or send an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or 
call  on 022-23058542/43. 

 
 The company has appointed Shri Mr. VivekKumar, (M.No. F9353; CP No. 11036), 

Practicing Company Secretary as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the remote e voting 
process in fair and transparent manner. 

 
 The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of the voting at the AGM, first 

count the votes casted at the meeting, thereafter unblock the votes casted through 
remote e-voting in the presence of at least two witnesses not in the employment in 
the company and make not later than three days of conclusion of the meeting a 
consolidated Scrutinizers Report of the Total votes cast in favor or against, if any, to 
the Chairman or person authorized by him in writing who shall counter sign the same. 
The chairman or the person authorized by him shall declare the result of the voting 
forthwith. 

 
 The results declared along with the Scrutinizers Report shall be placed on the 

Company’s website www.suprapacific.com and on the website of CDSL immediately 
after the result have been declared by the Chairman. The company shall 
simultaneously communicate the result to BSE Limited where the shares of the 
company are listed. 

 
Details of Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at the forthcoming AGM 
in pursuance of Regulation 36 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015 
 
Name of Director Mr. Manoj K 

DIN  DIN: 08760264 
Date of Birth 31/05/1974  
Date of Appointment on the Board 15.06.2023 
Expertise in specific functional area B.Com graduate with MBA in Marketing, he 

started his career with healthcare industry and 
moved on to financial sector by 2006. Since 
2006, he had associated with various financial 
institutions such as HDFC Life, Muthoot Fincorp, 
Manappuram Finance and Maxvalue Credits. 
From 2020 onwards he is associated with 
Centreal Multitrade India Pvt Ltd (Subsidiary of 
Centreal Bazaar) as Managing Director. 
Key areas of expertise of Mr. Manoj include 
Corporate Sales & Marketing, Business 
Development, Human resources, Channel & 
Distribution Management and Team 
Management.   
 

Qualification B Com, MBA 
Relationship with other directors Nil 
Directorship in other companies Centreal Multitrade India Pvt Ltd 

 



Membership of Committees in Other 
Public Limited Companies 

Nil 

Shareholding of Director in the Company 288186 

 
Name of Director Mr. JOBY GEORGE 
DIN  06429801 
Date of Birth 21/05/1974 
Date of Appointment on the Board 13/08/2024 
Expertise in specific functional area Joby George, Chairman & Managing Director of 

Supra Pacific, is a dynamic leader in the 
financial marketing space. With a passion for 
coordinating and leading teams, George has 
honed his skills over more than 20 years of 
experience in the industry. As an Arts 
Graduate, he brings a unique perspective to the 
table, setting him apart as a strong marketing 
professional. 
With a wealth of experience in developing 
marketing teams for various financial 
businesses, George has a proven track record 
of success. He has held responsible positions in 
leading financial service industries, where he 
has been instrumental in the development of 
many nonbanking financial institutions in South 
India. His excellent communication skills and 
great convincing ability make it easy for his 
team to follow the strategy, and his 
commitment to delivering results has made him 
a respected leader in the industry. 
Throughout his career, George has 
demonstrated exceptional leadership abilities 
and an unwavering commitment to his 
responsibilities. His adaptability and ability to 
handle multiple tasks make him a valuable 
asset to any team, while his cheerful disposition 
and excellent service spirit have earned him the 
admiration of colleagues and clients alike. 

Qualification Arts 
Relationship with other directors Nil 
Directorship in other limited companies Centreal Bazaar India Limited, Aries Industrial 

Park Pvt Ltd. 
Membership of Committees in Other 
Public Limited Companies 

Nil 

Shareholding of Director in the Company 1940164  

 
Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 
Item No. 4 
Mr. JOBY GEORGE (DIN: 06429801) was re-appointed as Managing Director of the 
Company for a Second term of five years on the terms and conditions and remuneration 
approved by the members at the 38th Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 30th 
September 2024. A brief profile along with other details of Shri JOBY GEORGE in compliance 
with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 are provided below: He has been able to 
develop a strong management team who work on formulation of strategy, expansion plan 
and other management policies under his able guidance. With his untiring efforts, focused 
attention and diligent work, he has been able to remain in touch with the management team 



on day to day basis. Considering his capabilities and rich experience to be beneficial for the 
Company, the Board of Directors in its meeting held on 13th August 2024, decided to 
recommend appointment of Shri JOBY GEORGE as Managing Director and Chairman of the 
Board, designated as “Chairman & Managing Director” for term of 5 years conditions and 
remuneration approved by the members at the 38th Annual General Meeting of the Company 
held on 30th September 2024. “Considering her capabilities and rich experience to be 
beneficial for the Company, the Board of Directors in its meeting held on 13th August 2024 
on recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, no other Director and 
KMP and their relatives are interested in this resolution. The Board recommends the 
resolution at item No.4 of the Notice for acceptance by the members. The Board 
recommends passing of the ordinary resolution. 
 
The Board recommends the resolution set forth in Item No. 4 for the approval of the 
Members. 
 
Item No. 5 
Pursuant to Section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 14 of the Companies 
(Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, the 
Company is required to obtain the approval of its members by way of a special resolution, 
before making any offer or invitation for issuance of NCDs on a private placement basis. The 
said approval shall be the basis for the Board to determine the terms and conditions of any 
issuance of NCDs by the Company for a period of 1 (one) year from the date on which the 
members have provided the approval by way of the special resolution. 
The disclosures required pursuant to Rule 14 of the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment 
of Securities) Rules, 2014 are set out herein below; 
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Annexure to Directors’ Report 
Annexure I 
 
Form No. MR-3 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st March 2024 
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014] 
 

To,  

The Members, 

SUPRA PACIFIC FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED 
(Formerly SUPRA PACIFIC MANAGEMENT CONSULTANCY 
LIMITED) 
Dreamax Height, Shop No.1, First floor,  
Upadhyay Compound, Jija Mata Road,  
Near Pump House, 
Andheri East, Mumbai – 400093 
 
We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory 
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Supra Pacific Financial 
Services Limited (Formerly Supra Pacific Management Consultancy Limited). Secretarial 
Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the 
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.  
 
Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns 
filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by 
the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of 
Secretarial Audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit 
period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2024 complied with statutory 
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes and 
compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting 
made hereinafter: 
 
We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 
records made available to us and maintained by the Company for the financial year ended 
on March 31, 2024 according to the applicable provisions of:  

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;  
(ii) The Securities Contract (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made 

thereunder;  
(iii)  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed 

thereunder;  
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(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made 
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct 
Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’): 
(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of 

Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;  
(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider 

Trading) Regulations, 2015;  
(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 and amendments from time 
to time;  

(d)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee 
Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021; (Not applicable to the 
Company during the audit period)  

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-
Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021;  

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and 
Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act 
and dealing with client; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit 
period)  

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) 
Regulations, 2021; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit 
period) and  

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) 
Regulations, 2018; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit 
period) 

(vi)  Other laws applicable specifically to the Company namely:-  
a)  The Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934; 
b)  Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically 
Important 

 Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) 
 Directions, 2016; 

c)  Non-Banking Financial Companies - Corporate Governance (Reserve Bank) 
 Directions, 2015; and 

d)  Master Direction- Non-Banking Financial Company Returns (Reserve Bank) 
 Directions, 2016. 

 We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 
(1)  Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of 

India with respect to board and general meetings. 
(2)  The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with National Stock 

Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited read with the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 
During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, 
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above 
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We further report that:  
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the 
composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were 
carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

Adequate notice was given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and 
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance for meetings other than 
those held at shorter notice, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further 
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful 
participation at the meeting.  

Majority decision is carried through, while dissenting members' views are captured and 
recorded as part of the minutes.  We further report that there are adequate systems and 
processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to 
monitor and ensure compliance with applicable Laws, Rules, Regulations and Guidelines 
etc.  
 
I further report that during the audit period, based on the information furnished and upon 
examination of documents, the Company has made the following issue during the period 
of audit under review; 
 

Date 
of 
allotm
ent 

Type of 
instrument 

No of 
Securi
ties 

Face 
Value 
and 
price 

Premium amount paid 
per security 

No of 
perso
n to 
who
m 
allot
ment 
is 
made 

03/05/
2023 

Issued Secured 
Non-Convertible 
Redeemable 
Debentures 34200 

Rs. 
1000. 
per 
debent
ure 
aggreg
ating  
342000
00  - 37 
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06/06/
2023 

Issued Secured 
Non-Convertible 
Redeemable 
Debentures 25730 

Rs. 
1000 
per 
debent
ure 
aggreg
ating  
257300
00 - 37 

31/07/
2023 

secured, unrated, 
unlisted, 
redeemable, fully 
paid-up 
nonconvertible 
debentures 42250 

Rs. 
1000 
per 
debent
ure 
aggreg
ating  
422500
00 - 55 

18/10/
2023 Equity Shares 

76825
00 

Rs. 10 
per 
equity 
shares 
aggreg
ating 
768250
00 

Rs. 10 per equity shares 
aggregating 76825000 93 

29/11/
2023 

secured, unrated, 
unlisted, 
redeemable, fully 
paid-up 
nonconvertible 
debentures 66750 

Rs. 
1000 
per 
debent
ure 
aggreg
ating  
667500
00 - 78 

17/02/
2024 Equity Shares 

61845
61 

Rs. 10 
per 
equity 
shares 
aggreg
ating 
618456
10 

Rs. 16 per equity shares 
aggregating 98952976 85 
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I further report that as per the information available at the web portal of Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs, during the audit period, the Company did alteration of name clauses of 
its Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association. The company changed it name 
from Supra Pacific Management Consultancy Limited to Supra Pacific Financial Services 
Limited. 

I further report, based on the information furnished and upon examination of documents, 
the Company has shifted its office of Registered Office from No: 3, Ground Floor, Building 
No: 12, Amar Niketan, Nr. JB Nagar Post Office, JB Nagar, Andheri East, Mumbai – 400059 
to Dreamax Height, Shop No.1, First floor, Upadhyay Compound, Jija Mata Road, Near 
Pump House, Andheri East, Mumbai – 400093 with effect from 24th August, 2023. 
 
I further report, based on the information furnished and upon examination of documents, 
the Company has shifted the Office where all or any books of account and papers are 
maintained of the company from 6/671- 37, First Chakrampilly Avenue, Judgemukku, 
Thrikkakara, Ernakulam, Kerala, 682021, India to Third floor of the Ajiyal Complex building 
bearing old door No. 7/473 ZA - 7 and 8 (new door number 14/816 and 14/817), of 
Thrikkakara Municipality, Mavelipuram Colony, Vayu Sena Road, Kakkanad P.O., PIN 
682030 Ernakulam India with effect from January 15, 2024. 
 
We further report that during the audit period no events occurred which had bearing on 
the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred Laws, Rules, Regulations, 
Guidelines, Standards etc. 

 
Place: Ernakulam 
Date: 12.08.2024  
 
UDIN: F009353F000952394  
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Annexure A 
To, 
 The Members 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of 
the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial 
records based on our audit.  

2. We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to 
obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the 
secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that 
correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the process 
and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.  

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records 
and Books of Accounts of the Company. 

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management Representation 
about the Compliance of Laws, Rules and Regulations and happening of events 
etc.  

5. The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, 
rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our 
examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test basis.  

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability 
of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management 
has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 
For DV & Associates  
Company Secretaries 
 
CS Vivek Kumar 
Partner 
M. No. F9353, CoP: 11036 
 
Peer Review Certificate No. 2876/2023 
UDIN : F009353F000952394 
 
Place: Ernakulam 
Date: 12.08.2024 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Members of SUPRA PACIFIC FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

Opinion

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matter is a matter that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the
current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be key audit matter to be
communicated in our report. 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Supra Pacific Financial Services Limited (‘the Company’), which comprise the
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the Statement of Changes in
Equity and the Statement of Cash flows for the year then ended and the notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as "the financial statements").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us the aforesaid financial statements give the
information required by the Companies Act 2013 ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards ) Rules, 2015,as
amended, ("IND AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March,
2024, and its profit, total comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standard of Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibility
under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder and 
we have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Impairment of carrying value of loans and advances:  
Management estimates impairment provision using Expected
Credit Loss Model (ECL) for the loan exposure. Measurement of
loan impairment involves application of significant judgement by
the management. The most significant judgements are:
 Timely identification and classification of impaired loans
Determination of probability of defaults (PD) and estimation of
loss given defaults (LGD) based on the value of collaterals and
relevant factors
The Company doesn't have credit loss history and has assigned PD
to each borrower on the basis of Company's internal rating model
on various rating agencies database and LGD are based on the
value of collaterals and relevant factors.

The estimation of Expected Credit Loss (ECL) on financial
instruments involve significant judgements and estimates.
Following are the points with increased level of audit focus:  
Classification of assets to stage 1,2 or 3 using criteria in
accordance with Ind AS 109
Accounting interpretations and data used to build and run the
models

Key Audit Matter Auditor's Response
Principal audit procedures performed:
We examined Board policy approving methodologies for computation of
ECL that address policies, procedures and controls for assessing and
measuring credit risk on all lending exposures, commensurate with the
size, complexity and risk profile specific to the Company. The parameters
and assumptions used and their rationale and basis are clearly
documented.
We evaluated the design and operating effectiveness of controls across the
processes relevant to determination of ECL, including the judgements and
estimates.
These controls, among others, included controls over the allocation of
assets into stages including maangement's monitoring of stage
effectiveness, model monitoring including the need for post model
adjustments, model validation, credit monitoring, individual provisions
and production of journal entries and disclosures.

We tested the completness of loans and advances included in the Expected
Credit Loss calculation as on 31 March 2024 by reconciling it with the
balances as per loan balance register as on the date.
We tested assets in stage 1,2 and 3 on sample basis to verify that they were 
allocated to the appropriate stage.
For samples of exposure, we tested the appropriateness of determining
Exposure at Default(EAD), PD and LGD.

Annual Report 2023- 2024 80



• When we read the management report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the
matters to those charged with governance as required under SA 720 'The Auditor's responsibilities Relating to Other Information'

• The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Company's annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The annual
report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

• Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not and will not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

• In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified above when it becomes
available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained during the course of our audit  or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

For forward looking assumptions used in ECL calculations, we held
discussions with management, assessed the assumptions used and
probaility weighs assigned to the possible outcomes.

Principal audit procedures performed:
We assessed the Company’s process on income computation. Our audit
approach consisted testing of the design and operating effectiveness of the
internal controls and substantive testing as follows:
Performed analytical procedures and test of detail procedures
for testing the accuracy of the revenue recorded.

Validate Commission Rates: Verified that the Commission rates
applied to loans facilitated align with contractual agreements and market
benchmarks.

Other Information

The disclosures made in financial statements for ECL especially
in relation to judgements and estimates by the management in
determination of the ECL.  

Commission Income from Loan Facilitation: 
During the year the Company has received Rs. 639.00 Lakhs as
Commissions which accounts for 25% of the Company's revenues.
These commissions on loans are based on facilitating loans by
bringing customers to lenders and managing the end-to-end
processes of these loans. The commission is based on agreements
with lenders. Given the complexity of the agreements, variability in
commission structures, and the significant judgment required in
recognizing huge revenue accurately, we have considered the
recognition of commission income from loan facilitation as a Key
Audit Matter.

For exposure determined to be individually impaired, we tested samples of
loans and advances and examined management's estimate of future cash
flows, assessed their reasonableness and checked the resultant provision
calculations

The estimation of Expected Credit Loss (ECL) on financial
instruments involve significant judgements and estimates.
Following are the points with increased level of audit focus:  
Classification of assets to stage 1,2 or 3 using criteria in
accordance with Ind AS 109


In preparing the financial statements, the management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Management’s responsibility for the financial statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect
to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, and cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the IND AS and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

2.

3.

A. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-
section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in Annexure "A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4
of the Order, to the extent applicable.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.
Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the
management.

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the company to expresss an opinion on the financial
statements.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of atmost significance in the audit 
of financial statements of the current year and are therefore the key audit matter.We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or 
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest 
benefits of such communication.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were  necessary for 
the purposes of our audit.
In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the company so far as it appears from our examination

of those books.
The company does not have any branches and so the provisions of section 143(8) are not applicable to the company.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

B. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the fianacial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic
decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial
statements.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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4.

5.
6.

7.

8.

9.

iv.

C.

For G Joseph & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm Reg. No. 006310S 

UDIN: 24228498BKDGLM6194 Allen Thomas Joseph 
Partner 

Place: Kochi

Date :  May 29, 2024

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and
the Statement of Cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.
In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act.
On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2024 taken on record by the Board of
Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2)
of the Act.
With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness
of such controls, refer to our separate Report in ‘Annexure B’. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and
operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.
With respect to the other matter to be included in the auditor's report in accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the

Act, as ammended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration
paid by the company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

Based on our examination carried out in accordance with the Implementation Guidance on Reporting on Audit Trail under Rule 11(g) 
of the companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (Revised 2024 Edition) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, 
the Company uses two accounting softwares, a core banking system for recording its financing operations and Tally software for its 
routine accounting tranactions. The core banking system software has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) which has been 
operational throughout the year. However, the tally software's audit trail feature (edit log) has not been operational throughout the year. 

With respect to the matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors)Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position in its financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable 
losses;
iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the company;

(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either
individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any
other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either
individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly
or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come
to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under the sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material
misstatement.

v. Since the Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year, the question of commenting on whether dividend 
declared or paid is in accordance with Section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013 does not arise.
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(i) a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

f)

(ii) a)

b)

(iii)

a)

b)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii) (a)

(b)

Particulars Assessment Year Amount

Income Tax 2015-16             7,10,490.00 

In respect of immovable properties of land and buildings that have been taken in lease and disclosed as Right of Use
asset in the financial statements, the lease agreements are in the name of the Company, where the company is the lessee
in the agreement.  

The terms and conditions of the grant of such loans are, in our opinion, prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company's
interest.

The schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated. The receipt of principal and the
amount of interest are regular.

ANNEXURE "A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT IN TERMS OF SECTION 143(11) OF THE 
COMPANIES ACT, 2013

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and situation of
Property , Plant and Equipment.
As explained to us, the Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management at reasonable
intervals and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.
As per the information and explanations provided to us, title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the
Company.

The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including right-of-use assets) and intangible
assets during the year
No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2024 for holding
any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made
thereunder.
The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

Based on the information and explanations given to us, the company has been sanctioned working capital limits inexcess
of Rs.5 Crores in aggregate, from banks and financial institutions on the basis of security of current asset duringthe year;
the periodic statements filed by the company with such banks and financial institutions are in agreement withthe books
of account of the company

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the books of account, the
Company has granted loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties
covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect of which:

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Income tax, Goods and Service Tax , cess and other material
statutory dues in arrears as at 31 March 2024 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable,
except for the dues referred to below: 

Since the Company’s principal business is to provide loans, the provisions of clause (iv) of the order are not applicable to it.
According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures conducted by us, the company
has provided loan to its related company of amounting to 48.12 Lakhs (Cl. Balance as on 31st march, 2024: 27.42 Lakhs) at
market rates and terms which are not prejudicial to the interests of the Company.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted
any deposit during the year and no order in respect has been passed by the Company Law Board or National Company Law
Tribunal or the Reserve Bank of India or any other Tribunals with regards to the Company

The provisions regarding maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act are not
applicable to the company.

According to the records of the Company, the Company has been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues
including Goods and Service Tax, income tax, cess to the extent applicable and any other statutory dues have generally
been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities. According to the informations and explanations given to us
there were no statutory dues on the last day of the financial year outstanding for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable.
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(c)

Particulars Assessment Year Amount

Income Tax 2016-17           24,90,761.00 

(viii)

(ix) (a)

(b)

(c)

(x) (a)

(b)

(xi) (a)

(b)

(c)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv) a)

b)

(xv)

(xvi) a)

b)

c)

d)

(xvii)

No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,during the year, we report that the Company
has registered as required , under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 

All transactions with related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 and the details of
such related party transactions have been suitably disclosed in the financial statements as required under the applicable Ind-
AS.

The Company has not conducted any Non- Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without a valid Certificate of
Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India,
hence reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) is not applicable to the Company
According to the information and explanations provided by the management of the Company, the Company does not
have any CICs as part of the Group. We have not, however, separately evaluated whether the information provided to us
is accurate and complete.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the company has an internal audit system
commensurate with the size and nature of its business;
The reports of the Internal Auditors for the period under audit were considered by the statutory auditor

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and the immediately preceding
financial year.

Based on the audit procedures performed and the information and explanation given to us, we report that the company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors/director of the company or associate company/a person connected
with the directors during the year. Accordingly paragraph 3 (xv) of the order is not applicable to the company. hence
provisions of section 192 of the act 2013 are not applicable to the company

The Company is not a Nidhi Company, therefore the provisions of clause 3 (xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under
rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date
of this report.
As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the
year

According to the information and explanations given to us, and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company,
there are no unrecorded income

During the year, the Company has made preferential allotment of shares and private placement of non-convertible
convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence we report that the requirements of Section 42 of act, have
been complied with and the amounts raised have been applied by the company during the year for the purposes for which
the funds were raised, other than temporary deployment pending application of funds. (Refer to note 22 on financial
statements)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of records of the
company, the company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in payment of interest to financial
institutions, banks, government and dues to debenture holders.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report that the
Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government
authority or any other lender
In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term loans have been applied, on an
overall basis, for the purposes for which they were obtained.
The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments)
during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

There were no dues of Income tax, Goods and Service Tax , cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at 31
March 2024 on account of disputes, except for the dues referred to below: 

Name of Authority

Additional Chief Metropolitan Majistrate, Mumbai
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(xviii)

(xix)

UDIN: 24228498BKDGLM6194 For G Joseph & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. No. 006310S

Allen Thomas Joseph 
Place: Kochi Partner 
Date :  May 29, 2024 Membership No: 228498 

Based on the audit procedures performed and the information and explanation given to us, we report that the company has no
liability maintain fund according to the provison of section 135 of Companies Act , 2013

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of
realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements,
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date
of the audit report that company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they
fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we
neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due.
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Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of
the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could
have a material effect on the financial statements.

ANNEXURE "B" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF SUPRA PACIFIC FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Supra Pacific Financial Services Limited (“the Company”)
as of 31st March, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the IND AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that
date.

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (the "guidance note"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting of the company based
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10)
of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal
Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require 
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Opinion

UDIN: 24228498BKDGLM6194 For G Joseph & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. No. 006310S

Allen Thomas Joseph 
Place: Kochi Partner 

Membership No: 228498 Date :  May 29, 2024

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all material respects,
an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting
were operating effectively as at 31st March, 2024 based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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SUPRA PACIFIC FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED 
( Formerly known as SUPRA PACIFIC MANAGEMENT CONSULTANCY LIMITED) 

BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2024 
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated) 

   
 

PARTICULARS NOTE NO. As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 
I ASSETS 

   

1 FINANCIAL ASSETS 
   

a. Cash and cash equivalents 7 320.99 434.93 
b. Receivables 8 

  
 

(I) Trade receivables 
 

162.00 162.84  
(II) Other receivables 

 
- - 

c. Loans 9 12,997.03 6,106.41 
d. Other financial assets 10 202.37 71.65 
2 NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS 

   

a. Current tax Assets /(liabili�es) (net) 11 137.68 58.91 
b. Deferred tax assets (Net) 30 28.00 3.69 
c. Property, plant and equipment 12 864.22 457.52 
d. Capital work-in-progress 

 
- 

 

e. Other intangible assets 12 51.46 5.02 
f. Right of use asset 35 (C ) 1,355.86 737.70 
g. Other non-financial assets 13 42.39 15.65  

Total Assets 
 

16,162.00 8,054.32 
II LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 

   

A. LIABILITIES 
   

1 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 
   

a Payables 
   

 
(I) Trade payables 14 

  
 

(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (MSME) 
 

- -  
(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than MSME 

 
38.60 16.68 

b. Debt securi�es 15 3,934.55 3,099.69 
c. Borrowings (Other than debt securi�es) 16 793.62 606.91 
d. Subordinated liabili�es 17 4,525.87 1,381.86 
e. Lease liability 35 (C ) 1,380.56 739.66 
f. Other financial  liabili�es 18 10.52 7.49 
2 NON-FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 

   

a. Provisions 19 72.90 17.75 
b. Other non-financial liabili�es 20 83.78 44.20 
B. EQUITY 

   

a. Equity share capital 21 2,669.60 1,282.90 
b. Other equity 22 2,652.00 857.18  

Total Liabili�es and Equity 
 

16,162.00 8,054.32  
See accompanying notes to the financial statements 

  
 

As per our report of even date a�ached 
   

 
For G Joseph & Associates For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors  
Chartered Accountants Supra Pacific Financial Services limited  
Firm Reg No. 006310S 

   

     
      

Allen Thomas Joseph Joby George Abidh Abubakkar  
Partner Chairman Cum Managing Director Execu�ve Director  
Membership No: 228498 (DIN:06429801) (DIN:08569590)      

     
  

Jithin George Leena Yezhuvath   
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary & 

Compliance Officer      
 

Place: Kochi Place: Kochi 
 

 
Date :  May 29, 2024 Date :  May 29, 2024 

 
 

UDIN: 24228498BKDGLM6194 
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YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

I
a. 1,929.08                                 1,052.65                                   
b. 23 656.19                                     158.45                                       

2,585.27                                1,211.10                                  
II 24 6.16                                          25.23                                         
III 2,591.43                                1,236.33                                  
IV
a 25 921.07                                     501.49                                       
b 26 41.42                                       31.58
c 27 980.74                                     378.77                                       
d 28 280.29                                     126.11                                       
e 29 307.79                                     147.96                                       

2,531.31                                1,185.91                                  
V 60.12                                      50.42                                        
VI

19.97                                       5.19                                            
(26.65)                                     19.45                                         

-                                            -                                              
VII 66.80                                      25.78                                        
VIII -                                           -                                               

(9.30)                                        (0.10)                                          
2.34                                          0.03                                            

(11.64)                                    (0.13)                                         
-                                            -                                               
-                                            -                                               
-                                           -                                               

(11.64)                                    (0.13)                                         
IX 55.16                                      25.65                                        

0.32                                          0.24                                            
0.32                                          0.24                                            

As per our report of even date attached

For G Joseph & Associates For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Supra Paci�ic Financial Services limited
Firm Reg No. 006310S

Allen Thomas Joseph Joby George Abidh Abubakkar

Partner Chairman Cum Managing 
Director Executive Director

Membership No: 228498 (DIN:06429801) (DIN:08569590)

Jithin George Leena Yezhuvath
Chief Financial Of�icer Company Secretary & 

Compliance Of�icer

Place: Kochi Place: Kochi
Date :  May 29, 2024 Date :  May 29, 2024
UDIN: 24228498BKDGLM6194

PARTICULARS NOTE NO.

See accompanying notes to the �inancial statements

SUPRA PACIFIC FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
( Formerly known as SUPRA PACIFIC MANAGEMENT CONSULTANCY LIMITED)

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

(ii)Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassi�ied to pro�it or 

Revenue from Operations
Interest Income
Fees and Commission Income
Total Revenue from Operations
Other Income
Total Income (I+II)
Expenses
Finance Costs
Impairment on Financial instruments
Employee Bene�it Expenses
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses
Other expenses
Total Expenses
Pro�it/(loss) before tax (III-IV)
Tax Expense:

Current tax
Deferred tax
Prior-period tax expenses

Pro�it for the year (III-IV)
Other Comprehensive Income
A) (i) Items that will not be reclassi�ied to pro�it or loss

Remeasurement gain/(Loss) on de�ined bene�it plan

Total Comprehensive Income for the year
Earnings per equity share (Face value of  ₹10/-each)

Other Comprehensive Income (A + B)

Basic
Diluted

Subtotal (A)
B) (i) Items that will be reclassi�ied to pro�it or loss 
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassi�ied to pro�it or loss
Subtotal (B)
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

(A) EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Equity shares of ₹ 10/- each issued, subscribed and fully paid
(1) Current reporting period

(2) Previous reporting period

(B) OTHER EQUITY

(1) Current reporting period

Statutory Reserve Securities Premium

20.07                      786.89                          857.18             
-                          -                     

20.07                      786.89                          857.18             
66.80

(11.64)
11.03                      -                     

1,757.78                       1,757.78         
(18.12)                           (18.12)              

31.10                     2,526.55                      2,652.02         

(2) Previous reporting period

Statutory Reserve Securities Premium

14.94                      177.40                          222.04
-                          -                                 -                     

14.94                      177.40                          222.04             
-                          -                                 25.78
-                          -                                 (0.13)                

5.13                        -                                 -                     
-                          621.03                          621.03
-                          (11.54) (11.54)              

20.07                     786.89                         857.18             

As per our report of even date attached

For G Joseph & Associates For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Supra Paci�ic Financial Services limited
Firm Reg No. 006310S

Allen Thomas Joseph Abidh Abubakkar
Partner Executive Director
Membership No: 228498 (DIN:08569590)

Leena Yezhuvath

Place: Kochi
Date :  May 29, 2024
UDIN: 24228498BKDGLM6194

SUPRA PACIFIC FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
( Formerly known as SUPRA PACIFIC MANAGEMENT CONSULTANCY LIMITED)

-                                       (0.13)                                                

Other items of OCI (Re 
measurement

of de�ined bene�it plans)

Reserves and Surplus

29.70
-                                       

29.70
25.78                                   

Total

Reserves and Surplus

Retained Earnings

-                                       

66.80                                   

(0.13)                                               

(0.13)                                                
-                                                    

(0.13)                                                

(11.64)

(11.77)

-                                                    

-                                                    
-                                                    
-                                                    

Other items of OCI (Re 
measurement

of de�ined bene�it plans)

-                                                    

Date :  May 29, 2024

Joby George
Chairman Cum Managing Director
(DIN:06429801)

Jithin George
Chief Financial Of�icer

Place: Kochi

Balance at the end of the previous reporting period
Transaction cost for Issue of Equity shares

Shares issued on prefrential basis
Transaction cost for Issue of Equity shares
Balance at the end of the current reporting period

Balance at the beginning of the previous reporting 
period
Changes in accounting policy/prior period errors
Restated balance at the beginning of the previous 
reporting period

Total Comprehensive Income for the previous year
Transfer to/from retained earnings
Shares issued on prefrential basis

Pro�it for the year (net of taxes)

Balance at the beginning of the 
current reporting period

Changes in Equity Share 
Capital due to prior period 

errors

Restated balance at the beginning of the 
current reporting period 

Changes in equity share 
capital during the current 

year

 Balance at the end of 
the current reporting 

period

Balance at the beginning of the
previous reporting period

Changes in Equity Share 
Capital due to prior period 

errors

Restated balance at the beginning of the 
previous reporting period

Changes in equity share 
capital during the previous 

year

Balance at the end of 
the previous reporting 

period

                                                1,282.90                                                    -                                                                   1,282.90                                       1,386.70                            2,669.60 

                                                    912.02                                                    -                                                                      912.02                                          370.88                            1,282.90 

-                                                    

Balance at the beginning of the current reporting 
period
Changes in accounting policy/prior period errors
Restated balance at the beginning of the current 
reporting period

Total Comprehensive Income for the current year
Transfer to/from retained earnings

Pro�it for the year (net of taxes)

-                                                    

Company Secretary & 
Compliance Of�icer

TotalRetained Earnings

50.35                                   

0.00
50.35                                  

50.35                                   

(11.03)

(5.13)

106.12                               
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March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Pro�it before Tax as per Statement of Pro�it and Loss 60.12                                           50.42                                    
Adjusted for:

Interest income on loans (1,929.08)                                   (1,052.65)                            
Finance costs 921.07                                         501.49                                  
Pro�it on sale of property, plant and equipment -                                                -                                         
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 280.29                                126.11                                  
Impairment on Financial instruments 34.08                                   6.46                                       
Net gain on fair value changes -                                       -                                         
Interest income from others -                                       (8.13)                                     
Gratuity Provision 26.79                                   3.48                              
Leave Encashment Provision 11.30                                   2.15                              

(595.43)                             (370.67)                      
Operational cash �low from interest

Operating Pro�it before Working Capital Changes
Adjusted for:

Decrease/ (increase) in Receivables 0.84                                              (162.84)                                
Decrease/ (increase) in Loans (6,588.80)                           (2,420.90)                            
Decrease/ (increase) in Other Financial Assets (69.51)                                 (52.57)                                  
Decrease/ (increase) in Other Non Financial Asset (26.74)                                 (3.26)                                     
Increase/ (decrease) in Trade Payables 21.92                                   14.79                                    
Increase/ (decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities 3.03                                     (19.90)                                  
Increase/ (decrease) in Provisions 7.76                                     (11.23)                                  
Increase/ (decrease) in Other Non-Financial Liabilities 39.58                                   6.25                                       

Cash Generated from Operations (7,207.35)                                 (3,020.33)                          

Interest received on loans 1,585.82                             977.45                                  
Finance costs (489.15)                              (388.90)                                

(6,110.68)                                 (2,431.78)                          

Taxes Paid (Net) (98.74)                                         (63.00)                                  
Net Cash Flow from/ (used in) Operating Activities (6,209.42)                                 (2,494.78)                          

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Property, plant and equipment (507.63)                                       (413.07)                                
Purchase of Other intangible assets (47.63)                                         (5.02)                                     
Net gain on fair value changes -                                                -                                         
Net Cash Flow from/(used in) Investing Activities (555.26)                                     (418.09)                              

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of equity shares, including securities premium 3,144.49                                     991.91                                  
(Payment)/Receipt of Security deposits (100.77)                                       (68.52)                                  
Proceeds from �inance lease -                                                7.96                                       
Repayment of Debt Securities (1,221.45)                                   (1,433.10)                            
Proceeds from Issue of Debt Securities 1,910.55                                     1,866.60                              
Proceeds from Subordinated Liabilities 2,983.78                                     1,278.85                              
Net proceeds from Borrowings other than Debt Securities 186.71                                         331.91                                  
Transaction cost for Issue of Debt Securities (9.65)                                            (35.32)                                  
Transaction cost for Issue of Subordinated Liabilities -                                                (30.35)                                  
Equity Capital raising expenses (18.12)                                         (11.55)                                  
Payment of lease liabilities (224.79)                                       (113.58)                                
Net Cash Flow from/(used in) Financing Activities 6,650.74                                   2,784.81                            

SUPRA PACIFIC FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
( Formerly known as SUPRA PACIFIC MANAGEMENT CONSULTANCY LIMITED)

(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
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Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (113.94)                                     (128.06)                              
Opening Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 434.93                                       562.99                                
Closing Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 320.99                                       434.93                                

Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
-Cash on hand 126.56                                       56.16                                   
-Balances with banks in current accounts 190.83                                       378.77                                
-Term deposit with original maturity upto 3 months 3.60                                            -                                        
Total 320.99                                       434.93                                

As per our report of even date attached

For G Joseph & Associates For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Supra Paci�ic Financial Services limited
Firm Reg No. 006310S

Allen Thomas Joseph Joby George Abidh Abubakkar

Partner Chairman Cum Managing 
Director Executive Director

Membership No: 228498 (DIN:06429801) (DIN:08569590)

Jithin George Leena Yezhuvath
Chief Financial Of�icer

Company Secretary & 
Compliance Of�icer

Place: Kochi Place: Kochi
Date :  May 29, 2024 Date :  May 29, 2024
UDIN: 24228498BKDGLM6194



Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

1 Corporate Information

2 Basis of preparation

3 Presentation of �inancial statement

4 Statement of compliance

5.1 Financial instruments

(i) Classi�ication of �inancial instruments

Signi�icant accounting policies (also refer to note 2 above)

Supra Paci�ic Management Consultancy Limited (Supra Paci�ic or 'the Company') is a public limited company domiciled in India and incorporated
on 12th April 1986 in Mumbai,Maharashtra. Its shares are listed on BSE Limited. The Company is a Non-Banking Finance Company
(‘NBFC’),which provides a wide range of fund based services including two wheeler loans, gold loans, Micro finance etc. The Company is a Non-
Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking NBFC(NBFC-ND). The Company is registered with the Reserve Bank of India (RBI).

The registration details are as follows:
Reserve Bank of India Registration no : 13. 01238
Corporate Identity Number (CIN) : L74140MH1986PLC039547

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read together with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021, as amended from time to time,
other relevant provisions of the Act and the RBI guidelines/regulations  to the extent applicable on an accrual basis.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets and financial liabilities that are
measured at fair value.
The financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the Company’s functional currency and all values are rounded to the nearest Lakh,
except when otherwise indicated.

The Company presents its balance sheet in order of liquidity. An analysis regarding recovery or settlement within 12 months after the reporting
date (current) and more than 12 months after the reporting date (non–current) is presented separately. Financial assets and financial liability are
generally reported gross in the balance sheet. They are only offset and reported net when, in addition to having an unconditional legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts without being contingent on a future event, the parties also intend to settle on a net basis in all
of the following circumstances:
i. The normal course of business
ii. The event of default
iii. The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company and/or its counterparties.
The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss are prepared and presented in the format prescribed in the Schedule III to the Act. The
Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared and presented as per the requirements of Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows”. 

These separate financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards as per the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the generally accepted
accounting principles as referred to in paragraph 2 "Basis of Preparation" above.

The Company classifies its financial assets into the following measurement categories:

1. Financial assets to be measured at amortised cost
2. Financial assets to be measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
3. Financial assets to be measured at fair value through profit or loss account 

The classi�ication depends on the contractual terms of the financial assets’ cash �lows and the Company’s business model for managing financial
assets. 

The Company determines its business model at the level that best re�lects how it manages groups of financial assets to achieve its business
objective.The business model is assessed on the basis of aggregated portfolios based on observable factors. These factors include:
► Reports reviewed by  the entity's key management personnel on the performance of the financial assets
► The risks impacting the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business model) and its management
thereof
► The compensation of the managing teams (for example, whether the compensation is based on the fair value of the assets managed or on the
contractual cash �lows collected)
► The expected frequency, value and timing of trades. 
The business model assessment is based on reasonably expected scenarios without taking 'worst case' or 'stress case’ scenarios into account. 

The Company also assesses the contractual terms of financial assets on the basis of its contractual cash �low characteristics that are solely for the
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
‘Principal’ s defined as the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition and may change over the life of the financial asset (for example, if
there are repayments of principal or amortisation of the premium/discount).
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(ii) Financial assets measured at amortised cost

(iii)

(iv) Items at fair value through pro�it or loss

(v)

(vi) Debt securities and other borrowed funds

(vii)

In making this assessment, the Company considers whether the contractual cash �lows are consistent with a basic lending arrangement i.e.
interest includes only consideration for the time value of money, credit risk, other basic lending risks and a profit margin that is consistent with a
basic lending arrangement. Where the contractual terms introduce exposure to risk or volatility that are inconsistent with a basic lending
arrangement, the related financial asset is classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

The Company classi�ies its financial liabilities at amortised costs unless it has designated liabilities at fair value through the profit and loss
account or is required to measure liabilities at fair value through profit or loss such as derivative liabilities.

These Financial assets comprise bank balances, loans, investments in debt securities and other financial assets.

Financial Assets with contractual terms that give rise to cash �lows on specified dates, and represent solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding; and are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by holding to collect contractual cash �lows
are measured at amortised cost. 
These financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs and subsequently measured at amortised
cost. Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset or a financial
liability.
Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
Debt instruments
Investments in debt instruments are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income where they have:
a)  contractual terms that give rise to cash �lows on specified dates, that represent solely payments of principal and interest on the principal 
amount outstanding; and
b) are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash �lows and selling financial assets.

These debt instruments are initially recognised at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs and subsequently measured at fair value. 
Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are included in other comprehensive income (a separate component of equity). Impairment 
losses or reversals, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit and loss. Upon disposal, the cumulative gain or 
loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to the statement of profit and loss. As at the reporting date 
the Company does not have any financial instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. 

Equity instruments
Investment in equity instruments are generally accounted for as at fair value through the profit and loss account unless an irrevocable election
has been made by management to account for at fair value through other comprehensive income Such classi�ication is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.

Items at fair value through profit or loss comprise:
• Investments (including equity shares) held for trading;
• Items specifically designated as fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition; and
• debt instruments with contractual terms that do not represent solely payments of principal and interest. 

Financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value, with transaction costs recognised in the 
statement of profit and loss as incurred. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value and any gains or losses are recognised in the statement of 
profit and loss as they arise.

Financial instruments held for trading

A financial instrument is classified as held for trading if it is acquired or incurred principally for selling or repurchasing in the near term, or forms 
part of a portfolio of financial instruments that are managed together and for which there is evidence of short-term profit taking, or it is a 
derivative not designated in a qualifying hedge relationship.
Trading derivatives and trading securities are classified as held for trading and recognised at fair value. 

After initial measurement, debt issued and other borrowed funds are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Amortised cost is calculated by
taking into account any discount or premium on issue funds, and transaction costs that are an integral part of the Effective Interest Rate (EIR).

Recognition and derecognition of �inancial assets and liabilities 
A financial asset or financial liability is recognised in the balance sheet when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument, which is generally on trade date. Loans and receivables are recognised when cash is advanced (or settled) to the borrowers. Financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised initially at fair value. All other financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus
directly attributable transaction costs. 

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual cash �lows from the asset expire or it transfers its rights to receive contractual
cash �lows on the financial asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred. Any interest in
transferred financial assets that is created or retained by the Company is recognised as a separate asset or liability. A financial liability is
derecognised from the balance sheet when the Company has discharged its obligation or the contract is cancelled or expires.
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(viii) Impairment of �inancial assets

The Company recognises impairment allowance for expected credit loss on financial assets held at amortised cost.

The Company recognises loss allowances (provisions) for expected credit losses on its financial assets (including non-fund exposures) that are
measured at amortised costs or at fair value through other comprehensive income account.

The Company applies a three-stage approach to measuring expected credit losses (ECLs) for the following categories of financial assets that are
not measured at fair value through profit or loss:
• debt instruments measured at amortised cost and fair value through other comprehensive income;
• loan commitments.

No ECL is recognised on equity investments.

Financial assets migrate through the following three stages based on the change in credit risk since initial recognition:
Stage 1: 12-months ECL
For exposures where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition and that are not credit impaired upon
origination, the portion of the lifetime ECL associated with the probability of default events occurring within the next 12 months is recognised.
Stage 2: Lifetime ECL – not credit impaired
For exposures where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition but are not credit impaired, a lifetime ECL (i.e.
re�lecting the remaining lifetime of the �inancial asset) is recognised.
Stage 3: Lifetime ECL – credit impaired
Exposures are assessed as credit impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash �lows of that
asset have occurred. For exposures that have become credit impaired, a lifetime ECL is recognised and interest revenue is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised cost (net of provision) rather than the gross carrying amount.

Determining the stage for impairment
At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk for exposures since initial recognition 
by comparing the risk of default occurring over the expected life between the reporting date and the date of initial recognition. The Company 
considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort for this purpose.
This includes quantitative and qualitative information and also, forward-looking analysis. 
An exposure will migrate through the ECL stages as asset quality deteriorates. If, in a subsequent period, asset quality improves and also reverses 
any previously assessed signi�icant increase in credit risk since origination, then the loss allowances reverts from lifetime ECL to 12-months ECL. 

The loss allowances for these financial assets is based on a 12-months ECL.

When an asset is uncollectible, it is written off against the related allowance. Such assets are written off after all the necessary procedures have 
been completed and the amount of the loss has been determined. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off reduce the amount of 
the allowances in the profit and loss statement.

The Company assesses whether the credit risk on an exposure has increased signi�icantly on an individual or collective basis. For the purposes of 
a collective evaluation of impairment, financial instruments are grouped on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics, taking into account 
instrument type, credit risk ratings, date of initial recognition, remaining term to maturity, industry, geographical location of the borrower and 
other relevant factors.

Measurement of ECLs
ECLs are derived from unbiased and probability-weighted estimates of expected loss, and are measured as follows:
• Financial assets that are not credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the present value of all cash shortfalls over the expected life of the 
financial asset discounted by the effective interest rate. The cash shortfall is the difference between the cash �lows due to the Company in 
accordance with the contract and the cash �lows that the Company expects to receive. The Company has grouped its various �inancial assets in to 
pools containing loans bearing homogeneous risks characteristics. The probability of default for the pools are computed based on the historical 
trends, adjusted for any forward looking factors. Similarly the Company computes the Loss Given Default based on the recovery rates.
• Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the difference between the gross carrying amount and the present value of 
estimated future cash �lows discounted by the effective interest rate.
• Undrawn loan commitments: as the present value of the difference between the contractual cash �lows that are due to the Company if the 
commitment is drawn down and the cash �lows that the Company expects to receive.
• Financial guarantee contracts: as the expected payments to reimburse the holder less any amounts that the Company expects to recover.

ECL on Debt instruments measured at fair value through OCI
The ECLs for debt instruments measured at FVOCI do not reduce the carrying amount of these financial assets in the balance sheet, which remains 
at fair value. Instead, an amount equal to the allowance that would arise if the assets were measured at amortised cost is recognised in OCI as an 
accumulated impairment amount, with a corresponding charge to profit or loss. The accumulated loss recognised in OCI is recycled to the profit 
and loss upon derecognition of the assets. As at the reporting date the Company does not have any debt instruments measured at fair value 
through OCI.
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(ix) Write-offs

(x) Determination of fair value

The Company reduces the gross carrying amount of a financial asset when the Company has no reasonable expectations of recovering a financial
asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the borrower does not have assets or
sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subjected to write-offs. Any subsequent recoveries against such
loans are credited to the statement of profit and loss.

Collateral Valuation
To mitigate its credit risks on financial assets, the Company seeks to use collateral, where possible. The collateral comes in various forms, such as  
movable and immovable assets, guarantees, , etc. However, the fair value of collateral affects the calculation of ECLs. To the extent possible, the 
Company uses active market data for valuing financial assets held as collateral. Other financial assets which do not have readily determinable 
market values are valued using models. Non-financial collateral, such as vehicles, is valued based on data provided by third parties or 
management judgements. 

Collateral repossessed 
In its normal course of business whenever default occurs, the Company may take possession of properties or other assets in its retail portfolio and 
generally disposes such assets through  auction, to settle outstanding debt. Any surplus funds are returned to the customers/obligors. As a result 
of this practice, assets under legal repossession processes are not recorded on the balance sheet.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. The Financial assets and liabilities are presented in
ascending order of their liquidity. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 102, leasing transactions that are within the scope of Ind
AS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as value in use in Ind AS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described
as follows:
• Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement
date;
• Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability ,either directly or
indirectly; and
• Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has 
occurred. No such instances of transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy were recorded during the reporting period. 

Difference between transaction price and fair value at initial recognition 
The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is the transaction price (i.e. the fair value of the consideration 
given or received) unless the fair value of that instrument is evidenced by comparison with other observable current market transactions in the 
same instrument (i.e. without modification or repackaging) or based on a valuation technique whose variables include only data from observable 
markets. When such evidence exists, the Company recognises the difference between the transaction price and the fair value in profit or loss on 
initial recognition (i.e. on day one).

When the transaction price of the instrument differs from the fair value at origination and the fair value is based on a valuation technique using 
only inputs observable in market transactions, the Company recognises the difference between the transaction price and fair value in net gain on 
fair value changes. In those cases where fair value is based on models for which some of the inputs are not observable, the difference between the 
transaction price and the fair value is deferred and is only recognised in profit or loss when the inputs become observable, or when the 
instrument is derecognised.

Annual Report 2023- 2024 97

CORPORATE OVERVIEW STATUTORY REPORTS FINANCIAL STATEMENTCORPORATE OVERVIEW STATUTORY REPORTS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



5.2 Revenue from operations

(i) Interest Income

(ii) Fees & Commission Income

(iii) Net gain on Fair value changes

5.3 Expenses
(i) Finance costs

Interest income is recognised by applying the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) to the gross carrying amount of financial assets measured through
amortised cost method.

The EIR in case of a financial asset is computed 
a. As the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of
a �inancial asset. 
b. By considering all the contractual terms of the �inancial instrument in estimating the cash �lows 
c. Including all fees received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs, and all other
premiums or discounts.  

Any subsequent changes in the estimation of the future cash �lows is recognised in interest income with the corresponding adjustment to the
carrying amount of the assets.

Fees and commissions other than those which forms part of EIR are recognised when the Company satisfies the performance obligation, at fair
value of the consideration received or receivable based on a five-step model as set out below: 

Step 1: Identify contract(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more parties that creates enforceable rights
and obligations and sets out the criteria for every contract that must be met.
Step 2: Identify performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a promise in a contract with a customer to transfer a good or
service to the customer.
Step 3: Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a contract that has more than one performance
obligation, the Company allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of consideration to
which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for satisfying each performance obligation.
Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation.

Processing fee which is not form part of effective interest rate has been recognised as and when it is accrue.

Any differences between the fair values of financial assets classi�ied as fair value through the profit or loss, held by the Company on the balance
sheet date is recognised as an unrealised gain / loss. In cases there is a net gain in the aggregate, the same is recognised in “Net gains on fair value
changes” under Revenue from operations and if there is a net loss the same is disclosed under “Expenses” in the statement of Profit and Loss.
Similarly, any realised gain or loss on sale of financial instruments measured at FVTPL and debt instruments measured at FVOCI is recognised in
net gain / loss on fair value changes. As at the reporting date the Company does not have any financial instruments measured at FVTPL and debt
instruments measured at FVOCI.

However, net gain / loss on derecognition of financial instruments classi�ied as amortised cost is presented separately under the respective head
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Finance costs represents Interest expense recognised by applying the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) to the gross carrying amount of financial
liabilities other than financial liabilities classified as FVTPL.
The EIR in case of a financial liability is computed 
a. As the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability to the gross carrying
amount of the amortised cost of a financial liability. 
b. By considering all the contractual terms of the �inancial instrument in estimating the cash �lows 
c. Including all fees paid between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs, and all other
premiums or discounts.  

Any subsequent changes in the estimation of the future cash �lows is recognised in interest income with the corresponding adjustment to the
carrying amount of the assets.

Interest expense includes issue costs that are initially recognized as part of the carrying value of the financial liability and amortized over the
expected life using the effective interest method. These include fees and commissions payable to advisers and other expenses such as external
legal costs, Rating Fee etc, provided these are incremental costs that are directly related to the issue of a financial liability.
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(ii) Retirement and other employee bene�its
Short term employee bene�it
All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classi�ied as short-term employee bene�its. These
benefits include short term compensated absences such as paid annual leave. The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits
expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees is recognised as an expense during the period. Benefits such as salaries
and wages, etc. and the expected cost of the bonus/ex-gratia are recognised in the period in which the employee renders the related service.

Post-employment employee bene�its

De�ined Bene�it schemes
The Company provides for the gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering all employees. The plan provides for lump sum payments to 
employees upon death while in employment or on separation from employment after serving for the stipulated years mentioned under ‘The 
Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972’. The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial valuation, 
carried out by an independent actuary at each Balance Sheet date, using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of 
service as giving rise to an additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the �inal obligation.  

The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash �lows. The discount rates used for determining the present value of 
the obligation under defined benefit plan are based on the market yields on Government Securities as at the Balance Sheet date.  

Net interest recognized in profit or loss is calculated by applying the discount rate used to measure the de�ined benefit obligation to the net 
defined benefit liability or asset. The actual return on the plan assets above or below the discount rate is recognized as part of re-measurement of 
net defined liability or asset through other comprehensive income. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ 
from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, attrition rate, future salary increases and mortality 
rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, these liabilities are highly sensitive to changes in these 
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed annually.

Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net 
defined benefit liability), are recognized immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI 
in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit and loss in subsequent periods.

Other long-term employee bene�its
Company’s liabilities towards compensated absences to employees are accrued on the basis of valuations, as at the Balance Sheet date, carried out 
by an independent actuary using Projected Unit Credit Method. Actuarial gains and losses comprise experience adjustments and the effects of 
changes in actuarial assumptions and are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
The Company presents the Provision for compensated absences under provisions in the Balance Sheet.

De�ined contribution schemes
All the employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under the Provident Fund and Employees State Insurance scheme, defined
contribution plans in which both the employee and the Company contribute monthly at a stipulated rate. The Company has no liability for future
benefits other than its annual contribution and recognises such contributions as an expense in the period in which employee renders the related
service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the Balance Sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the
deficit payable to the scheme is recognised as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the
contribution due for services received before the Balance Sheet date, then excess is recognised as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will
lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.
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(iii) Other income and expenses

(iv) Impairment of non-�inancial assets

(v) Taxes

5.4 Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentational currency

(ii) Transactions and balances

All Other income and expense are recognized in the period they occur.

The carrying amount of assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment based on internal/external factors.
An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
greater of the assets, net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the asset.

In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an
appropriate valuation model is used. After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining
useful life.

Current Tax
Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior years are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from, or paid to, the
taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted, or substantively enacted, by the reporting
date in the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable income.
Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income
or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation
and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting
date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled. 

Deferred tax assets are only recognised for temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits if it is probable that future taxable
amounts will arise to utilise those temporary differences and losses. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and they relate to
income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities are realised simultaneously.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT)
Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax. The Company recognizes MAT credit 
available as an asset only to the extent that it is probable that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period, i.e., the period 
for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which the Company recognizes MAT credit as an asset in accordance with the 
Guidance Note on Accounting for Credit Available in respect of Minimum Alternative Tax under the Income-tax Act, 1961, the said asset is created 
by way of credit to the statement of profit and loss and shown as “MAT Credit Entitlement.” The Company reviews the MAT Credit Entitlement 
asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the Company does not have convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax 
during the specified period.
Goods and services tax /value added taxes paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses
Expenses and assets are recognised net of the goods and services tax/value added taxes paid, except:
i. When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case, the tax paid is 
recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable
ii. When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included
The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

The standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees which is also functional currency of the Company and the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the Company operates.

Initial recognition:
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

Conversion:
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency, which are outstanding as at the reporting date, are translated at the reporting
date at the closing exchange rate and the resultant exchange differences are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Non–monetary items that are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the spot exchange rates as at the date of
recognition.
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5.5 Cash and cash equivalents

5.6 Property, Plant and equipment (PPE)

The estimated useful lives are, as follows:

Particulars Useful life 
estimated  

by 
Company

Computer
 - End User equipment 3 years
 - Server 6 years
Furniture & Fixtures
 - Safe and strong rooms 10 years
Office Equipment 5 years
Electrical fittings 10 years
Buildings 30 years
Vehicles 10 years
Plant & Equipment 15 years

5.7 Intangible assets

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either �inite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful 
economic life. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a �inite useful life are reviewed at least at each 
financial year-end. Changes in the expected useful life, or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset, 
are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or methodology, as appropriate, which are then treated as changes in accounting 
estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is presented as a separate line item in the statement of profit and loss. 
Amortisation on assets acquired/sold during the year is recognised on a pro-rata basis to the Statement of Profit and Loss from / upto the date of 
acquisition/sale.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight–line method to write down the cost of intangible assets to their residual values over their estimated 
useful lives. Intangible assets comprising of software are amortised on a straight-line basis over a period of 6 years, unless it has a shorter useful 
life.
The Company’s intangible assets consist of computer software with definite life.
Gains or losses from derecognition of intangible assets are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying 
amount of the asset are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise the net amount of short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash (short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less) and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value, cheques on
hand and balances with banks. They are held for the purposes of meeting short-term cash commitments (rather than for investment or other
purposes).
For the purpose of the statement of cash �lows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short- term deposits, as defined above.

Property, plant and equipment (PPE) are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment, (if any). The total cost of
assets comprises its purchase price, freight, duties, taxes and any other incidental expenses directly attributable to bringing the asset to the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the management. Changes in the expected useful life
are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or methodology, as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates.
Subsequent expenditure related to an item of tangible asset are added to its gross value only if it increases the future benefits of the existing asset,
beyond its previously assessed standards of performance and cost can be measured reliably. Other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed
off as and when incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the Straight Line Method (SLM) to write down the cost of property and equipment to their residual values over 
their estimated useful lives. Land is not depreciated.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.
Property plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is recognised
in other income / expense in the statement of profit and loss in the year the asset is derecognised. The date of disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment is the date the recipient obtains control of that item in accordance with the requirements for determining when a
performance obligation is satisfied in Ind AS 115.

An intangible asset is recognised only when its cost can be measured reliably and it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that
are attributable to it will �low to the Company.
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of an intangible asset comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use and net of any trade discounts and rebates. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
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5.8 Provisions

5.9 Contingent Assets and Liabilities 

5.10 Earnings Per Share

5.11 Segment Reporting

5.12 Leases

The Company as a lessee

Provisions are recognised when the enterprise has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past events, and it is probable that an
out�low of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
the obligation. 

When the effect of the time value of money is material, the enterprise determines the level of provision by discounting the expected cash �lows at
a pre-tax rate re�lecting the current rates specific to the liability. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement of profit and
loss net of any reimbursement.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurence or non occurence
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity. The Company does not recognize or disclose contingent asset
in the financial statements.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a
liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its
existence in the financial statements.

The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with Ind AS 33 on Earnings per share. Basic EPS is calculated by
dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders (after attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted
average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive potential equity
shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date. In computing the dilutive earnings
per share, only potential equity shares that are dilutive and that either reduces the earnings per share or increases loss per share are included.

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker (CODM).
The Board of Directors (BOD) of the Company assesses the financial performance and position of the Company, and makes strategic decisions.
The BOD, which has been identified as being the chief operating decision maker. The Company is engaged in the business of i) Lending finance
and ii) Fees & commission income. The said business are aggregated for the purpose of review of performance by CODM. Accordingly, the
Company has concluded that the business of lending finance and fees & commission income to be the only reportable segment.

Ind AS 116 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted with any option to extend or terminate
the lease, if the use of such option is reasonably certain. The Company makes an assessment on the expected lease term on a lease-by-lease basis
and thereby assesses whether it is reasonably certain that any options to extend or terminate the contract will be exercised. In evaluating the
lease term, the Company considers factors such as any significant leasehold improvements undertaken over the lease term, costs relating to the
termination of the lease and the importance of the underlying asset to Company's operations taking into account the location of the underlying
asset and the availability of suitable alternatives. The lease term in future periods is reassessed to ensure that the lease term re�lects the current
economic circumstances. 

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and buildings. The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at
inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses
whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the
asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a corresponding lease liability for all lease
arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these
short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the
lease.

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities
includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments
made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the
underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell
and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash �lows that are largely independent of
those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.
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6 Signi�icant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

6.1 Defined employee benefit assets and liabilities

6.2 Impairment of loans portfolio

6.3 Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classi�ied as financing cash
�lows.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of
these leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company changes its
assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the Ind AS requires the management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosure and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and future periods are affected. Although these estimates are based on
the management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes
requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.
In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements is included in the following notes:

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An
actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination
of the discount rate; future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a
defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed annually.

The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets requires judgement, in particular, the estimation of the amount
and timing of future cash �lows and collateral values when determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant increase in credit
risk. These estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in which can result in different levels of allowances.
It has been the Company’s policy to regularly review it's ECL model in the context of actual loss experience and adjust when necessary. 
In case, higher provisions are to be considered as per the prudential norms of the Reserve Bank of India, they are considered.

Expected Credit Loss:
As per Ind AS 109, the loan losses are to be provided based on ECL method. ECL is measured at 12-month ECL for Stage 1 loan assets and at
Llifetime ECL for Stage 2 and Stage 3 loan assets. ECL is the product of the Probability of Default, Exposure at Default and Loss Given Default, i.e.,
ECL=PD X EAD X LGD

- PD: Probability of Default (“PD”) is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given timehorizon. A default may only happen at a certain time
over the assessed period, if the facility has not been previously derecognized and is still in the portfolio. The PD is computed for Stage 1, Stage 2
and Stage 3 independently by determining default rates based on the historical data after giving due weightage for abnormal period and events,
probability of roll back etc.

- EAD: Exposure at Default (“EAD”) is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date, taking into account expected changes in the exposure
after the reporting date, including repayments of principal and interest, whether scheduled by contract or otherwise, expected draw down on
committed facilities, etc.

- LGD: Loss Given Default (“LGD”) is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default occurs at a given time. It is based on the difference
between the contractual cash due and those that the lender would expect to receive, including from the realization of any collateral. It is
usually expressed as a percentage of the EAD.

The Company’s EIR methodology, recognises interest income / expense using a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate
of return over the expected behavioural life of loans given / taken and recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates at various stages
and other characteristics of the product life cycle (including prepayments and penalty interest and charges).
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Note 7 Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars
Cash on hand
Balance with banks- in current accounts
Bank deposit with maturity of less than 3 months
Total
Cash and Cash Equivalents as per Cash Flow Statement

Note 8 Receivables

Particulars
(I) Trade receivables

a) Receivables considered good - Secured
b) Receivables considered good - Unsecured
c) Receivables which have signi�icant increase in credit ri
d) Receivables – credit impaired

Total
(II)Other receivables

Less: Allowance for impairment loss
Total Net Receivable

Trade Receivables Ageing Schedule 

Less than 6
months

 6 months - 1 
years 1 - 2 years 2 - 3 years More than 3 

years  Total

 (i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 162.00                   -                            -                   -                 -                   162.00        

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have signi�icant 
increase in credit risk -                         -                           -                  -                -                  -               
(iii)Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired -                         -                           -                  -                -                  -               
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - considered good -                         -                           -                  -                -                  -               
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have signi�icant 
increase in credit risk -                         -                           -                  -                -                  -               
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired -                       -                         -                 -               -                -               

Less than 6
months

 6 months - 1 
years 1 - 2 years 2 - 3 years More than 3 

years  Total

 (i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 162.84                 -                           -                  -                -                  162.84        
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have signi�icant 
increase in credit risk -                         -                           -                  -                -                  -               
(iii)Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired -                         -                           -                  -                -                  -               
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - considered good -                         -                           -                  -                -                  -               
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have signi�icant 
increase in credit risk -                         -                           -                  -                -                  -               
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired -                         -                           -                  -                -                  -               

As at March 31, 2023
 Outstanding for following periods from due date of paymentParticulars 

Particulars 

434.93                                   

As at

31 March 2023

-                                           

As at March 31, 2024
 Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

320.99                                                   

As at

31 March 2024

-                                                            
-                                                            

Short-term bank deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three months, depending on the immediate cash requirements of the 
Company, and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates.

As at
31 March 2024

126.56                                                     
190.83                                                     

3.60                                                          

As at
31 March 2023

56.16                                       
378.77                                    

-                                           

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are short-term in nature.

-                                                                
162.00                                                   

-                                           
162.84                                    

162.84                                    

-                                               
162.84                                   

162.00                                                     

162.00                                                     
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Note 10 Other �inancial assets
As at As at

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Interest Receivable 0.03                          -                            
Security Deposits 120.81                     59.60                       
Lease Receivables 2.60                          0.20                          
Other Receivables 78.93 11.85
Total 202.37                    71.65                      

199.77                     71.45                       
82                               12                              

Note 11 Current tax Assets (net)
As at As at

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Current tax provision (net of advance tax and tax deducted at source) 137.68                     58.91                       
Total 137.68                    58.91                      

Note 13 Other non-�inancial assets
As at As at

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Prepaid Expenses 20.60                       9.29                          
Staff Advance 0.85                          -                            
Balance receivable from Government authorities 13.24                       6.36                          
Other non financial assets 7.70                          
Total 42.39                      15.65                      
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Note 14 Trade payables
As at As at

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises -                          -                           
(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 38.60                     16.68                      

Total 38.60                    16.68                     

Note 14(i) Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro,Small & Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

-                          -                           

-                           -                            

-                           -                            
-                           -                            

-                           -                            
Total -                         -                          

Note 14(ii)  Trade Payables aging schedule

Less than 1 
year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

(i) MSME -                    -             -            -                          -                           
(ii) Others 38.60               -             -            -                          38.60                      
(iii) Disputed dues – MSME -                    -             -            -                          -                           
(iv)Disputed dues - Others -                    -             -            -                          -                           
Total 38.60               -             -            -                          38.60                      

Less than 1 
year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

(i) MSME -                    -             -            -                          -                           
(ii) Others 16.68               -             -            -                          16.68                      
(iii) Disputed dues – MSME -                    -             -            -                          -                           
(iv)Disputed dues - Others -                    -             -            -                          -                           

Total 16.68               -             -            -                          16.68                      

Note 18 Other financial  liabilities
As at As at

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Retention Money Payable 10.02                     5.84                         
Debenture Application Pending Allotment 0.50                        
Security deposit payable -                          1.65                         
Total 10.52                    7.49                        

Note 19 Provisions
As at As at

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Provision for compensated absences 16.72                     2.72                         
Provision for Gratuity 36.31                     3.58                         
Provision for expenses 19.87                     11.45                      
Total 72.90                    17.75                     

Note 20 Other non-financial liabilities
As at As at

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Income tax liability (pending  final assessment) 32.01                     32.01                      
Other Statutory dues and taxes payable 51.77                     12.19                      
Total 83.78                    44.20                     

Based on and to the extent of the information received by the Company from the suppliers during the year regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act), the total outstanding dues of Micro and Small enterprises, which are outstanding for more than the stipulated period and other disclosures 
as per the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (hereinafter referred to as “the MSMED Act”) are given below :

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment#

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment#

As at 31 March 2024

As at 31 March 2023

Particulars

Particulars

The principal amount and the interest due thereon (to be shown separately) remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each 
accounting year.

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along 
with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day 
during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above are 
actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and 
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Note 21 Equity share capital
As at As at

Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Authorised
5,00,00,000 (March 31, 2021:5,00,00,000) Equity Shares of ₹10/- each 5,000.00               5,000.00                      
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up
1,28,28,975 (March 31, 2022:91,20,161) Equity Shares of ₹10/-each 2,669.60               1,282.90                      
Total 2,669.60              1,282.90                     

(a) Reconciliation of Shares at the Beginning and at the End of the reporting period
Equity shares of ₹10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid

Particulars No. of Shares Amount in ₹
At 1st April 2022 91,20,161              5,50,08,000                 
Issued during the year 37,08,814              3,70,88,140.0              
At 31st March 2023 1,28,28,975         12,82,89,750             
Issued during the year 1,38,67,061          13,86,70,610.0           
At 31st March 2024 2,66,96,036         26,69,60,360             

Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

(b) Shares held by each Shareholder holding more than 5% of the Paid-up Capital

Particulars No. of Shares % of holding No. of Shares % of holding
Joby George 19,40,164          7.27% 6,67,525               5.20%
KAREEPADATH GOPALAKRISHNAN VINESH 49,29,550          18.47% 27,28,580            21.27%
CENTREAL CONSULTANCY SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED 41,21,088          15.44% 21,54,734            16.80%

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year

Promoter name No. of Shares %of total shares

Joby George 19,40,164 7.27% 9.92%
Sandeep Babu T 3,23,948 1.21%                         5.90 
Arunkumar C M 46,948 0.18%                              -   

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ₹10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the 
event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all 
preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Aggregate number of shares issued for consideration other than cash during the period of �ive years immediately preceding the reporting date:
The Company has not issued shares for consideration other than cash during the period of five year immediately preceding the reporting date.

(d) Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or quali�ied institutions placement as speci�ied under regulation 32 (7A).

The Company did not have any of the above issues during the year under review except for Preferen�al Allotment of 76,82,500 (Seventy Six Lakh Eighty Two Thousand Five Hundred) 
equity shares and 61,84,561 (Sixty One Lakh Eighty Four Thousand Five Hundred and Sixty One) of face value of Rs. 10/- on 18.10.2023 and 17.02.2024 respectively.  The net proceeds 
have been fully u�lised for the purpose stated in the offer document. There has been no devia�ons in the use of proceeds as stated in the offer document. Details of u�lisa�on of 
funds raised through Preferen�al allotment as per regula�on 32(7A) are given in the Report on Corporate Governance.

31 March 2024

% Change 
during the year

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year

(c) A company shall disclose Shareholding of Promoters* as below

31 March 2023
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Note 22 Other equity
Particulars Amount
Statutory Reserve as per Section 45 IC of RBI Act, 1934
At 1st April 2022 14.94                           
Add: Transfer from surplus balance in the Statement of Pro�it and Loss 5.13                              
At 31st March 2023 20.07                           
Add: Transfer from surplus balance in the Statement of Pro�it and Loss 11.03                            
At 31st March 2024 31.10                           

Statement of Pro�it and Loss
At 1st April 2022 29.70                           
Add: Transfer from surplus balance in the Statement of Pro�it and Loss 25.78                            
Less: Transaction cost for Issue of Equity Shares -                                
Less: Transfer to Statutory Reserve (5.13)                            
At 31st March 2023 50.35                           
Add: Transfer from surplus balance in the Statement of Pro�it and Loss 66.80                            
Add: Transaction cost for Issue of Equity Shares -                                
Less: Transfer to Statutory Reserve (11.03)                          
At 31st March 2024 106.12                        

Securities Premium
At 1st April 2022 177.40                         
Shares issued on prefrential basis 609.49                         
Less: Transaction cost for Issue of Equity Shares -                                
At 31st March 2023 786.89                        
Shares issued on prefrential basis 1,757.78                      
Less: Transaction cost for Issue of Equity Shares (18.12)                          
At 31st March 2024 2,526.55                     

Other Comprehensive Income
At 1st April 2022 -                                
Add: Addition during the year (0.13)                            
At 31st March 2023 (0.13)                            
Add: Addition during the year (11.64)                          
At 31st March 2024 (11.77)                         

Reserve u/s. 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 ("the RBI Act, 1934") 

It represents the gain/(loss) on re-measurement of De�ined Benefit Obligation and Plan assets

Debenture Redemption Reserve

Pursuant to provisions of Companies Act, 2013 (the 'Act') read with relevant rules thereunder, the Company, being a NBFC, is exempt from transferring any 
amount to debenture redemption reserve in respect of privately placed debentures including the requirement to invest up to 15% of the amount of 
debentures maturing during the next �inancial year. However, the Company maintains suf�icient liquidity buffer to fulfill its obligations arising out of 
debentures. Accordingly the Company has deposited ₹146.00 Lakhs in deposit account for debenture redemption

Securities Premium
Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised only for limited purposes such as issuance of bonus 
shares in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Other Comprehensive Income
Remeasurement of de�ined bene�it plans

Surplus in the statement of profit and loss
Surplus in the statement of profit and loss is the accumulated available profit/ (loss) of the Company carried forward from earlier years. These reserves, if 
any,  are free reserves which can be utilised for any purpose as may be required.

Reserve u/s. 45-IA of RBI Act, 1934 is created in accordance with section 45 IC(1) of the RBI Act, 1934. As per Section 45 IC(2) of the RBI Act, 1934, 
no appropriation of any sum from this reserve fund shall be made by the non-banking financial company except for the purpose as may be specified by 
RBI
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Note 23 Fees and commission income
For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Fees/charges on loan transactions 17.19                                   8.45                                      
BC Commission Income 639.00                                150.00                                 
Total 656.19                               158.45                                

Note 24 Other income
For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Income from sub-lease 1.97                                     8.13                                      
MONEY EXCHANGE COMMISSION 0.06                                     -                                        
Interest income tax refund 0.15                                     -                                        
Interest income from banks 3.98                                     17.10                                    
Total 6.16                                    25.23                                   

Note 25 Finance costs
For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
On �inancial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Interest on debt securities 391.73                                330.16                                 
Interest on subordinated liabilities 287.18                                98.37                                    
Interest on Borrowings (Other than debt securities) 126.89                                12.08                                    

Finance cost on lease liability 115.27                                60.88                                    
Total 921.07                               501.49                                
Note: There is no �inancial liability measured at FVTPL.

Note 26 Impairment on financial instruments
For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Loss on Repossession/Loan Write off 7.34                                         25.12                                        
Provision for expected credit loss 34.08                                   6.46                                      
Total 41.42                                 31.58                                   

Note 27 Employee benefits expenses
For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Salaries, wages and bonus 911.52                                357.52                                 
Staff Welfare expenses 16.13                                   2.62                                      
Directors Remuneration 15.00                                   13.00                                    
Gratuity Provision 26.79                                   3.48                                      
Leave Encashment Provision 11.30                                   2.15                                      
Total 980.74                               378.77                                
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Note 28 Depreciation and amortisation
For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Depreciation of assets 101.10                                35.40                                    
Amortisation of right of use assets 179.19                                90.71                                    
Total 280.29                               126.11                                

Note 29 Other expenses
For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Advertisement charges 45.79                                   1.04                                      
Auditors fees (refer note (i) below) 7.60                                     7.00                                      
Bank charges 10.50                                   2.50                                      
Brokerage & Recovery Agent Commission -                                       8.19                                      
Building utility expenses 23.35                                   10.89                                    
Business promotion expenses 8.55                                     1.00                                      
Computer software & maintenance charges 14.01                                   4.90                                      
Directors sitting fees 8.10                                     6.40                                      
Insurance 6.30                                     2.88                                      
Legal and Professional charges 32.10                                   20.15                                    
Of�ice expenses 32.03                                   15.64                                    
Postage and telephone expenses 20.37                                   8.85                                      
Printing and stationery 28.13                                   10.84                                    
Rates & taxes 15.02                                   21.89                                    
Rent expenses 21.90                                   8.41                                      
Repairs and Maintanace 2.92                                     1.03                                      
Security Service 16.83                                   4.88                                      
Travelling expenses 14.29                                   11.47                                    
Total 307.79                               147.96                                

Note (i)
For the year ended For the year ended

Payment to auditors 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Statutory audit fees 3.00                                     3.00                                      
Limited reviews 3.00                                     3.00                                      
Certi�ication Charges 1.60                                     1.00                                      
Total 7.60                                    7.00                                     
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in Lakh of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Note 30 Income tax

The components of income tax expense for the year ended 31 March 2024 and March 2023 are:
For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Current tax 19.97                                        5.19                                             

-                                            -                                               
(26.65)                                      19.45                                          

Income tax expense reported in statement of profit and loss (6.68)                                       24.64                                         
Income tax recognized in other comprehensive income (OCI) -
Deferred tax related to items recognized in OCI during the period

 Actuarial (gain)/loss moved from profit and loss 2.34                                         0.03                                            
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans

Income tax charged to OCI 2.34                                         0.03                                            

Reconciliation of total Income tax charge:

Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2024

Year ended 
31 March 2023

Pro�it before tax for computation                                          60.12                                             50.42 
Add/(Less) : (Allowances) / Disallowances (Net)                                          19.23                                          (29.82)
Adjusted pro�it before tax for income tax 79.35 20.60                                          

Current tax as per Books 19.97 5.19                                             
Adjustment of earlier year taxes -                                            -                                               
Total tax as given in Books 19.97 5.19                                             

Statutory income tax at the rate of 25.17% 19.97 5.19                                             

Deferred Tax

The following table shows deferred tax recorded in the balance sheet and changes recorded in the Income tax expense:

Deferred Tax 
Assets

Deferred Tax 
Liabilities

Statement of Profit and 
Loss

31 March 2024 31 March 2024 2023-24
Property Plant & Equipment -                                (26.52)                              (6.68)                                         
Right of Use Asset (Net of Lease Liabilities) 24.70                            -                                    6.22                                          
Impairment Allowance for Financial Assets 88.07                            -                                    22.17                                        
Debt Instruments measured at amortised cost -                                (116.81)                           (29.39)                                      
Financial assets measured at amortised cost -                                -                                    (0.01)                                         
Other Financial assets measured at amortised cost 75.40                            -                                    18.98                                        
Other Financial Liabilities -                                66.41                                16.72                                        
Total 188.17                        (76.92)                            28.00                                       
Net Deferred tax asset  as at 31 March 2024 28.00                           

Deferred Tax 
Assets

Deferred Tax 
Liabilities

Statement of Profit and 
Loss

31 March 2023 31 March 2023 2022-23
Property Plant & Equipment -                                (21.58)                              (5.43)                                         
Right of Use Asset (Net of Lease Liabilities) 1.96                              0.49                                          
Impairment Allowance for Financial Assets 55.00                            13.84                                        
Debt Instruments measured at amortised cost -                                (88.42)                              (22.25)                                      
Financial assets measured at amortised cost 29.59                            -                                    7.44                                          
Other Financial assets measured at amortised cost 33.80                            -                                    8.51                                          
Other Financial Liabilities -                                4.31                                  1.08                                          
Total 120.35                        (105.69)                          3.69                                         
Net Deferred tax asset  as at 31 March 2023 3.69                             

The Company has computed the tax expense of the current �inancial year as per the tax regime announced under section 115BAA of the lncome Tax Act, 1961. Accordingly, (a) 
the provision for current and deferred tax has been determined at the rate of 25.17% and (b) the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities as on April 01, 2019 have been 
restated at 25.17%.

Adjustment in respect of current income tax of prior years
Deferred tax relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences

Particulars

Particulars
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in Lakh of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Note 31 Earnings per share
For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Net pro�it for calculation of basic earnings per share                                         55.16                                                     25.65 
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic earnings per share (Nos.)                            1,70,56,887                                        1,09,22,450 

Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating diluted earnings per share (Nos.)                            1,70,56,887                                        1,09,22,450 

Basic earnings per share (Rs.)                                           0.32                                                       0.24 

Diluted earnings per share (Rs.)                                           0.32                                                       0.24 

Note 32 Segment reporting

Note 33 Retirement benefit plan
Defined contribution plan

Defined benefit plan

Update on the Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code’)

Privilege Leave benefits

Net liability/(assets) recognized in the Balance Sheet 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Present Value of Bene�it Obligation                                         16.72                                                       2.72 
Fair Value of Plan Assets                                                -                                                              -   
Net Liability / (Asset) recognised in Balance Sheet                                        16.72                                                      2.72 

Net employee benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss 
Components of employer expense 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Current service cost 11.30 1.97                                               
Past Service Cost -                                      -                                                 
Net Interest on net de�ined bene�it liability/ (asset) 0.19                                    0.04                                               
Actuarial (Gains) / Losses on Liability 3.62                                    0.13                                               
Total employer expense 15.11                                 2.15                                              

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Discount rate 7.10% 7.40%
Attrition rate 
Mortality Rate
Retirement Age
Salary Growth Rate 7.00% 7.00%

Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14) Ult.
5% to 1%

58 years

The principal assumptions used in determining leave encashment obligations for the Company’s plans are shown below:

The Company is engaged in the business segment of Financing, whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the entity’s chief operating decision maker to make 
decisions about resources to be allocated and to assess its performance, and for which discrete �inancial information is available. Further other business segments do 
not exceed the quantitative thresholds as de�ined by the Ind AS 108 on “Operating Segment”. Hence, there are no separate reportable segments, as required by the Ind 
AS 108 on “Operating Segment”.

The Company makes Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance Scheme contributions which are de�ined contribution plans, for qualifying employees. Under the 
Schemes, the Company is required to contribute a speci�ied percentage of the payroll costs to fund the bene�its. The Company recognized  2.83 Lakhs (31 March 2023: 
0.70 Lakhs) for Provident Fund contributions and 8.77 Lakhs (31 March 2023: 1.33 Lakhs) for Employee State Insurance Scheme contributions in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss. The contributions payable to these plans by the Company are at rates speci�ied in the rules of the Schemes

The Company has a de�ined bene�it gratuity plan. The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Every employee who has completed �ive years 
or more of service gets a gratuity on leaving the service of the company at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service. Gratuity liability is 
unfunded.

Privilege leave entitlements are recognised as a liability as per the rules of the Company. The liability for accumulated leaves which can be availed and/or encashed at 
any time during the tenure of employment. 

The following tables summaries the components of net benefit expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss and the funded status and amounts 
recognized in the balance sheet for compensated leave of absence.

The Code on Social Security , 2020 (‘Code’) relating to employee bene�its during employment and post-employment bene�its received Presidential assent in 
September 2020 . The Code has been published in the Gazette of India . However , the date on which the Code will come into effect has not been noti�ied. The Company 
will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the period when the Code becomes effective.
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Changes in the present value of the de�ined bene�it obligation are as follows:

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Opening defined benefit obligation 2.72                                     0.58
Transfer in/out -                                        0.00
Interest cost 0.19                                     0.04                                                
Current service cost 11.31 1.97                                                
Bene�its paid (1.12)                                    -                                                   
Past service cost -                                        -                                                   
Actuarial loss / (gain)  from changes in �inancial assumptions 0.69                                     (0.20)                                               
Actuarial loss / (gain)  from experience over the past year -                                        -                                                   
Actuarial losses (gains) arising from experience adjustments 2.93                                     0.33                                                
Closing defined benefit obligation 16.72                                 2.72                                                

Bifurcation of Present Value of Benefit Obligation 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Current - Amount due within one year 1.51                                         0.07                                                     
Non-Current - Amount due after one year 15.21                                      2.65                                                     
Total 16.72                                     2.72                                                    

Net liability/(assets) recognized in the Balance Sheet 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Present Value of Bene�it Obligation                                         36.31                                                       3.58 
Fair Value of Plan Assets                                                -                                                              -   
Net Liability / (Asset) recognised in Balance Sheet                                        36.31                                                      3.58 

Net employee benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss 
Components of employer expense 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Current service cost 26.79 3.41                                               
Past Service Cost -                                      -                                                 
Net Interest on net de�ined bene�it liability/ (asset) 0.25                                    0.07                                               
Actuarial (Gains) / Losses on Liability -                                      -                                                 
Total employer expense 27.04                                 3.48                                              

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Discount rate 7.10% 7.40%
Attrition rate 
Mortality Rate
Retirement Age
Salary Growth Rate 7.00% 7.00%

Changes in the present value of the de�ined bene�it obligation are as follows:

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Opening defined benefit obligation 3.58                                     -                                                       
Transfer in/out -                                        -                                                       
Interest cost 0.25                                     0.07                                                
Current service cost 26.79                                      3.41                                                
Bene�its paid -                                        -                                                   
Past service cost -                                        -                                                   
Actuarial loss / (gain)  from changes in �inancial assumptions 1.54                                     (0.27)                                               
Actuarial loss / (gain)  from experience over the past year -                                        -                                                   
Actuarial losses (gains) arising from experience adjustments 4.15                                     0.37                                                
Closing defined benefit obligation 36.31                                 3.58                                                

Bifurcation of Present Value of Benefit Obligation 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Current - Amount due within one year 1.21                                         0.06                                                     
Non-Current - Amount due after one year 35.10                                      3.52                                                     
Total 36.31                                     3.58                                                    

Remeasurement gain/ (loss) in other comprehensive income (OCI) Currency:
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Re-measurements on defined benefit obligation
Actuarial (Gains) / Losses on Liability 9.30                                         0.10                                                     
Return on Plan Assets excluding amount included in 'Net interest on net De�ined Liability / (Asset)' abov -                                           -                                                       
Re-measurements on plan assets
Return on Plan assets, excluding amount included in net interest on the net de�ined bene�it 
liability/(asset) -                                           -                                                       
Actuarial gain /(loss) (through OCI) 9.30                                        0.10                                                    

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss and the funded status and amounts 
recognized in the balance sheet for the gratuity plan.

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Company’s plans are shown below:

5% to 1%
Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14) Ult.

58 years
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in Lakh of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Note 34 Related party disclosures
Relationship Name of the party
Promoter Company Sanat Multitrade Private Limited

Central Financial Credit & Investment Co-operative India Ltd.
key management personnel or their relatives. Centreal Bazaar India Limited

Key Management Personnel/Director Mr. Joby George- Chairman cum Managing Director
Ms. Leena Yezhuvath -Company Secretary
Mr. Jithin George. Chief Financial Officer

Executive Director Mr. Abidh Abubakkar- Executive Director (Appointed on November 29  
Non-Executive Directors Mr. Arunkumar - Non Executive Director (Resigned on June 16, 2023)

Mr. Sandeep Babu T.-Director
Mr. Manoj K - Non Executive Director (Appointed on June 15, 2023)
Mr. Murali- Independent Director
Ms. Dhanya Jose- Independent Director
Mr. Anvar K- Independent Director
Mr. Joly Sebastian (Appointed on June 15, 2023)

Material related party
Centreal Consultancy Services india Pvt Ltd
Sheer Capital Ventures

Relatives of Key Management Personnel/Director Ms. Smithamol (wife of Mr. Joby George)*
Mr. Christy Joby (son of Mr. Joby George)*
Ms. Andrea Joby (daughter of Mr. Joby George)*
Ms. Ashna B R (wife of Mr. Abidh Abubakkar)
Ms. Manju John (wife of Mr. Sandeep Babu T)
Ms. Radhika P  (wife of Mr. Manoj K )
Mr. Asharaf V A (Brother of Mr. Abidh Abubakkar)
Ms. Asha T B (Mother of Mr. Sandeep Babu T)

 March 31, 
2024 

 March 31, 
2023 

 March 31, 
2024 

 March 31, 
2023 

 March 31, 
2024 

 March 31, 
2023 

 March 31, 
2024 

 March 31, 
2023 

Debentures and Subordinate Repaid during the 
year
Sanat Multitrade Private Limited (60.00)          
Mr. Joby George (50.00)         (20.00)       
Mr. Sandeep Babu T. -               (5.00)         
Mr. Abidh Abubakkar (6.00)           -             
Mr. Manoj K -               -             

Debentures and Subordinate Bond Issued during 
the year

Mr. Joby George 60.00           25.00         
Mr. Sandeep Babu T. 5.00           
Mr. Abidh Abubakkar 34.00         
Mr. Manoj K -             
Ms. Ashna B R 11.00          25.20                 
Mr. Asharaf V A 10.00          
Ms.Asha T B 5.00             

Interest expense
Sanat Multitrade Private Limited -                  7.20              -             
Mr. Joby George 10.10           8.15           
Mr. Sandeep Babu 0.57             0.57           
Mr. Abidh Abubakkar 4.85             -             
Ms. Ashna B R 3.04             -                     

Associates / Enterprises owned or significantly in�luenced by 

* No transactions with these related parties

Related Party transactions during the year: 

Particulars 

 Promoter Company/ 
Material related party 

 Associates / Enterprises 
owned or significantly 

in�luenced by Key 
Management Personnel or 

their relatives 

 Key Management 
Personnel/

Director 

 Relatives of Key 
Management 

Personnel/Director 

 For the year ended 
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Issue of Equity Shares
Centreal Consultancy Services india Pvt Ltd 50.00             530.00         
Sheer Capital Ventures 50.00             
Mr. Joby George 210.00        83.00         
Mr. Sandeep Babu 55.00           
Mr. Abidh Abubakkar 75.00           20.00         
Mr. Manoj K 55.00           3.00           
Ms. Ashna B R -               25.00          
Ms. Manju John -               45.00          
Ms. Radhika P -               45.00          

Sitting Fee to Directors
Mr. Arun Kumar 0.20             1.00           
Mr. Sandeep Babu T. 1.50             1.20           
Mr. Abidh Abubakkar -               0.70           
Mr. Manoj K 1.10             
Ms. Winey Mathew -               0.50           
Mr. Murali 1.50             1.40           
Ms. Dhanya Jose 1.20             0.80           
Mr. Anvar K 1.50             0.70           
Mr. Joly Sebastian 1.10             
Ms. Neethu S -               0.10           
Remuneration to Directors
Mr. Joby George 15.00           13.00         
Remuneration to Other KMPs
Ms. Leena Yezhuvath 8.40             6.60           
Mr. Jithin George 13.80           12.00         
Loan Taken
Centreal Bazaar India Limited 1,000.00        400.00        
Loan repaid
Centreal Bazaar India Limited 1,000.00        400.00        
Security Deposit repaid
Central Financial Credit & Investment Co-operative 

 
(6.83)           

Centreal Bazaar India Limited 3.00             
Purchase of assets
Centreal Bazaar India Limited 2.97                25.65           
Rent & Other Expenses paid
Centreal Bazaar India Limited 0.50                2.22             
Corporate Loan Provided during the year
Centreal Bazaar India Limited -               
Interest paid
Centreal Bazaar India Limited 22.42              1.90             
Interest received
Centreal Bazaar India Limited 6.56                8.15             

 As at
31 March 

2024 

 As at
31 March 

2023 

 As at
31 March 

2024 

 As at
31 March 

2023 

 As at
31 March 

2024 

 As at
31 March 

2023 

 As at
31 March 

2024 

 As at
31 March 2023 

Balance Outstanding as at the year end:
 Corporate Loan Outstanding 
 Centreal Bazaar India Limited -               27.42              37.71           -                     
 Security Deposit paid 
 Centreal Bazaar India Limited 2.11                -               -               

Note: 
(i) Related parties have been identified on the basis of the declaration received by the management and other records available.
(ii)The transactions disclosed above are exclusive of  GST

Particulars 

 Promoter Company/ 
Material related party 

 Associates / Enterprises 
owned or significantly 

in�luenced by Key 
Management Personnel or 

their relatives 

 Key Management 
Personnel/

Director 

 Relatives of Key 
Management 

Personnel/Director 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in Lakh of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Note 35 Contingent liabilities, commitments and leasing arrangements

A. Contingent liabilities

B. Commitments

C. Leasing Arrangements

-Right-of-use assets
Particulars  Amount 
Balance as at 1 April 2022
Additions
Deletion
Amortisation on Right Of Use assets
Balance as at 31 March 2023
Additions
Deletion
Amortisation on Right Of Use assets
Balance as at 31 March 2024 1,355.86                                                            

-Lease liabilities
Particulars  Amount 
Balance as at 1 April 2022 179.78                                                                
Additions 613.05                                                                  
Deletion -                                                                         
Payment of Lease liabilities (114.05)                                                                
Finance cost accrued during the period 60.88                                                                    
Balance as at 31 March 2023 739.66                                                                
Additions 751.37                                                                  
Deletion (18.69)                                                                  
Payment of Lease liabilities (207.05)                                                                
Finance cost accrued during the period 115.27                                                                  
Balance as at 31 March 2024 1,380.56                                                            

- Amounts recognised in statement of profit and loss

Particulars  For the year ended
 31 March 2024 

 For the year ended
 31 March 2023 

Depreciation expense on right-of-use assets 179.19                                                                 90.71                                                                    
Interest expense on lease liabilities (115.27)                                                               (60.88)                                                                  

The total cash outflow for leases amount to ₹29.04

Maturity analysis of Lease Liability

Particulars  As at
 31 March 2024 

 As at
 31 March 2023 

Not later than one year 170.88                                                                 154.43                                                                  
Later than one year but not later than four years 645.15                                                                 478.10                                                                  
Later than four years 564.53                                                                 107.13                                                                  

1,380.56                                                            739.66                                                                

-Profit on Sub Lease

Particulars  As at
 31 March 2024 

 As at
 31 March 2023 

Net Investment during the Year -                                                                         54.64                                                                    
Cost of Leased Asset used for Sub Lease -                                                                         (46.51)                                                                  
Profit on Sub Lease -                                                                        8.13                                                                       

During the previous year the Company has sub-leased one of its premises taken on lease.

                                                                                                                                                       174.38 
                                                                                                                                                        654.03 

                                                                                                                                                                  -   
                                                                                                                                                        (90.71)

737.70                                                                                                                                                     
797.35                                                                                                                                                      

(179.19)                                                                                                                                                    

There are no pending claims against  the Company. 

Undrawn commitment given to borrowers- Less than one year- Nil (Previous Year: Nil)
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account - Nil (Previous Year: Nil)

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116 (Leases). The standard prescribes the lessee to recognise 
Right of Use (ROU) assets and corresponding Lease Liabilities in its Balance Sheet for the entire period of the lease. For charging costs to the Profit & Loss Account, 
actual lease rentals are substituted with amortization of the ROU asset as well as a notional finance cost on the lease liability. Although the nature of expenses under 
leases has changed, this does not impact the Company’s business or cash flows, which remains the same. The discount rate is generally based on the incremental 
borrowing rate with similar tenure.

During the year the company has taken two branches premises on lease. Below are the changes made during the year in the carrying value of:

The entity does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities. Lease liabilities are monitored within the entity’s treasury function.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in Lakh of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Note 36 Risk management

Risk Management Framework

Identification of Risk and Analysis

Credit Risk

While each of the risk has significance, all except the Credit Risk can be managed and controlled through internal processes. It is the Credit Risk management which needs 
both internal and external factors in equal measure to be effective and controlled.

This is the major risk anticipated in connection with the nature of operations of the company. While a lot would need to be done internally to monitor it and control it, the 
external factors also plays its role in the final impact of the credit risk. Credit risk is the risk of default or non-repayment of loan by a borrower, which involves monetory 
loss to the company, both in terms of principal and interest. In the portfolio of an NBFC, the losses stem from outright default due to the inability or unwillingness of a 
customer or counterparty to meet commitments in relation to repayment, trading, settlement and other financial transactions. Alternatively, losses result from reduction 
in portfolio value arising from actual or perceived deterioration in credit quality due to any event affecting the borrower/ a group of borrowers. The effective 
management and reporting of credit risk is a critical component of comprehensive risk management and is essential for the long-term success of any banking and financial 
services organization. It ensures that risks are identified in advance and corrective action taken. Credit risk management encompasses identification, measurement, 
monitoring, control and reporting o f the credit risk exposures.

The major risk that the Company faces is the default and / or delay in payment of EMIs (principal and interest) by the customers within the due time. To mitigate the said 
risk, the Company measures the credit history, capacity to repay, loan amount and loan conditions and associated collateral, if any, of the customer before 
sanctioning/disbursing loan and has an efficient post disbursal monitoring mechanism to take corrective and timely action when ever required to minimise the 
probability of default/loss.

In order to mitigate the impact of credit risk in the future profitability, the company makes reserves basis the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the outstanding loans 
as balance sheet date. 
The below discussion describes the Company's approach for assessing impairment as stated in the significant accounting policies.
Methodology for assessment of Expected Credit loss on loan asset-Refer note on Impairment  of Loans portfolio in significant accounting policies.

Risk is an integral part of the any business and sound risk management is critical to the success of any business venture. As a financial intermediary, the Company is 
exposed to risks that are particular to its lending and the environment within which it operates and primarily includes credit, liquidity and market risks. The Company has 
a risk management framework  which covers risk associated with the financial assets and liabilities. The Board of Directors of the company are responsible for the overall 
risk management approach, approving risk management strategies and principles. The company have a risk management policy which covers all the risk associated with 
its assets and liabilities. 

The main objective is to create and protect shareholder value by minimizing threats or losses and identifying and maximizing opportunities and thereby ensuring 
sustainable business growth with stability. The Risk Management systems also promote a pro-active approach in reporting, evaluating and resolving risks associated with 
the business.

The Board of Directors and the Audit Committee are responsible for the overall risk management and for approving the risk management policies, strategies and 
principles so that the management controls the risks through properly defined processes

The Board plays a pivotal role in the effective management of the risk mitigation process within the Company. The Board is responsible for framing, implementing and 
monitoring the risk management plan and to ensure that appropriate systems for risk management are in place. The Audit Committee evaluates the internal financial 
controls and efficacy of the risk management systems, reviews all hedging strategies/risk treatment methodologies vis a vis compliance with the Risk Management Policy 
and relevant regulatory guidelines and ensures periodic review of operations and contingency plans and reports to Board in order to counter possibilities of adverse 
factors having a bearing on the risk management systems. 

The Board has constituted the Risk Management Committee, which is responsible for monitoring the overall risk process within the Company. The Risk Management 
Committee has the responsibility to oversee the development, implementation and maintenance of the Company’s overall risk management framework and its appetite, 
strategy, principles and policies, to ensure they are in line with emerging regulatory, corporate governance and industry best practice. The Risk Management Committee is 
responsible for managing risk decisions and monitoring risk levels.

Risk identification and mitigation is obligatory on all verticals and functional heads who, with the inputs from their team members, are required to report the material 
risks to the concerned levels of the Company along with their considered views and recommendations for risk mitigation.

The Company has identified the following potential risks that could have an adverse impact on the Company:
1. Credit Risk
2. Operational Risk
3. Compliance Risk
4. Reputational Risk
5. Strategic Risk
6. Liquidity Risk
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Liquidity Risk

The table below provide details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial assets and liabilities as on:-

1- 30 Days Over 1 to 2 
months

Over 2- 
3months

Over 3 months & 
upto 6 months

Over 6 months 
& upto 1 year 1 to 3 years 3 to 5 years Over 5 years Total*

320.99        -               -            -                      -                                      -                      -                      -             320.99 
162.00        -               -            -                      -                                      -                      -                      -             162.00 

1,184.75     835.93        685.06     2,113.97            7,037.76               1,136.06               3.50                    -       12,997.03 
78.96           -            -                      0.69                                9.05             57.02             56.65           202.37 

1,746.70   835.93       685.06    2,113.97          7,038.45       1,145.11    60.52         56.65         13,682.39 

38.60           -               -            -                      -                                      -                      -                      -                38.60 
-               -               -            -                      1,003.03               1,370.15       1,030.84          530.52        3,934.55 

18.65           272.45        43.64        76.92                  149.76                     232.20                    -                      -             793.62 
-               -               -            -                      -                               97.15       2,089.45       2,339.27        4,525.87 

10.52           -               -            -                      -                                     -                10.52 
67.77          272.45       43.64       76.92                 1,152.79       1,699.51    3,120.29   2,869.79   9,303.16    

1,678.93     563.48        641.42     2,037.05            5,885.65        (554.39)       (3,059.77)  (2,813.14)  4,379.23     

1- 30 Days Over 1 to 2 
months

Over 2- 
3months

Over 3 months & 
upto 6 months

Over 6 months 
& upto 1 year 1 to 3 years 3 to 5 years Over 5 years Total*

434.93        -               -            -                      -                                      -                      -                      -             434.93 
162.84        -               -            -                      -                                      -                      -                      -             162.84 
230.96        197.80        240.10     760.73               3,850.61                  822.05               4.16                    -          6,106.40 

21.62           -            5.76                    6.39                                     -               28.25               9.63              71.65 
850.35       197.80       240.10    766.49              3,857.00       822.05        32.41         9.63            6,775.82    

16.68           -               -            -                      -                                      -                      -                      -                16.68 
145.00        499.75        -            -                      576.70                     974.74                    -            903.50        3,099.69 

8.32             8.32             8.32          24.96                  485.05                        71.94                    -                      -             606.91 
-               -               -            -                      -                               93.60          824.20          464.06        1,381.86 

5.84             -               -            -                      -                                1.65                    -                  7.49 
175.84       508.07       8.32          24.96                 1,061.75       1,140.28    825.85      1,367.56   5,112.63    
674.51        (310.27)      231.78     741.53               2,795.25        (318.23)       (793.44)      (1,357.93)  1,663.19     

   - Liquidity risk management

Asset and Liability Management (ALM) is defined as the practice of managing risks arising due to mismatches in the asset and liabilities. Company’s funding consists of
both long term as well as short term sources with different maturity patterns and varying interest rates. On the other hand, the asset book also comprises of loans of
different duration and interest rates. Maturity mismatches are therefore common and has an impact on the liquidity and profitability of the company. It is necessary for
Company’s to monitor and manage the assets and liabilities in such a manner to minimize mismatches and keep them within reasonable limits.

The objective of this policy is to create an institutional mechanism to compute and monitor periodically the maturity pattern of the various liabilities and assets of
Company to (a) ascertain in percentage terms the nature and extent of mismatch in different maturity buckets, especially the 1-30/31days bucket, which would indicate
the structural liquidity (b) the extent and nature of cumulative mismatch in different buckets indicative of short term dynamic liquidity and (c) the residual maturity
pattern of repricing of assets and liabilities which would show the likely impact of movement of interest rate in either direction on profitability. This policy will guide the
ALM system in Company.

*Amount represents net balance after the adjustments on account of Indian Accounting Standards

   - Management of market risks
   - Others

Maturity pattern of financial assets and financial liabilities as at 31 March 2023:

Liquidity Risk arises largely due to maturity mismatch associated with assets and liabilities of the Company. Liquidity risk stems from the inability of the Company to fund
increase in assets, manage unplanned changes in funding sources and meet financial commitments when required.

Maturity pattern of financial assets and financial liabilities as at 31 March 2024:

Particulars

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade receivables
Loans
Other financial assets
Total financial assets
Financial liabilities

Asset & Liability Management

The scope of ALM function can be described as follows:

Trade Payables
Debt securities
Borrowings (Other than debt securities)
Subordinated liabilities
Other financial  liabilities
Total financial liabilities
Net �inancial assets/(liabilities)

Particulars

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade receivables
Loans
Other financial assets
Total financial assets

Other financial  liabilities
Total financial liabilities
Net �inancial assets/(liabilities)

Financial liabilities
Trade Payables
Debt securities
Borrowings (Other than debt securities)
Subordinated liabilities
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Financial instrument (continued)

Market Risk

Interest rate risk

Operational and business risk

The carrying value and fair value of other financial instruments by categories as of March 31, 2024 were as follows:
Carrying amount
Amortised cost Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 320.99                     320.99           -                  -                  320.99             
Trade receivables 162.00                     162.00           162.00             
Loans 12,997.03               -                  -                  12,997.03     12,997.03       
Other financial assets 202.37                     -                  202.37           -                  202.37             
Total 13,682.39             320.99          364.37          12,997.03    13,682.39     
Liabilities: -                            -                  -                  -                  -                    
Trade payables 38.60                       -                  38.60              -                  38.60               
Debt securities 3,934.55                 -                  3,934.55        -                  3,934.55          
Borrowings (Other than debt securities) 793.62                     -                  793.62           -                  793.62             
Subordinated liabilities 4,525.87                 -                  4,525.87        -                  4,525.87          
Other financial liabilities 10.52                       -                  10.52              -                  10.52               
Total 9,303.16                -                  9,303.16      -                  9,303.16        

The carrying value and fair value of other financial instruments by categories as of March 31, 2023 were as follows:
Carrying amount
Amortised cost Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 434.93                     434.93           -                  -                  434.93             
Trade receivables 162.84                     162.84           162.84             
Loans 6,106.41                 -                  -                  6,106.41        6,106.41          
Other financial assets 71.65                       -                  71.65              -                  71.65               
Total 6,775.83                434.93          234.49          6,106.41      6,775.83        
Liabilities: -                            -                  -                  -                  -                    
Trade payables 16.68                       -                  16.68              -                  16.68               
Debt securities 3,099.69                 -                  3,099.69        -                  3,099.69          
Borrowings (Other than debt securities) 606.91                     -                  606.91           -                  606.91             
Subordinated liabilities 1,381.86                 -                  1,381.86        -                  1,381.86          
Other financial liabilities 7.49                          -                  7.49                -                  7.49                  
Total 5,112.63                -                  5,112.63      -                  5,112.63        

Measurement of fair values

Valuation methodologies of �inancial instruments not measured at fair value

Market Risk is the risk that the fair value or the future cash �lows of a financial instrument will �luctuate because of changes in market factor. Such changes 
in the values of financial instruments may result from changes in the interest rates, credit, liquidity, and other market changes. The objective of market risk 
management is to avoid excessive exposure of our earnings and equity to loss and reduce our exposure to the volatility inherent in financial instruments. 
The Company is primarily exposed to Interest rate risk as under.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash �lows of a financial instrument will �luctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The 
company is subject to interest rate risk, primarily since it lends to customers at fixed rates and for maturity periods different from the funding sources. 
Interest rates are highly sensitive to many factors beyond control, including the monetary policies of the Reserve Bank of India, deregulation of the �inancial 
sector in India, domestic and international economic and political conditions, in�lation and other factors. In order to manage interest rate risk, the company 
seek to optimize borrowing profile between short-term and long-term loans. The company adopts funding strategies to ensure diversified resource-raising 
options to minimize cost and maximize stability of funds. Assets and liabilities are categorized into various time buckets based on their maturities and Asset 
Liability Management Committee supervise an interest rate sensitivity report periodically for assessment of interest rate risks. The Interest Rate Risk is 
mitigated by availing funds at very competitive rates through diversified borrowings and for different tenure

Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from systems failure, human error, fraud or external events. When controls fail to operate effectively, operational 
risks can cause damage to reputation, have legal or regulatory implications, or lead to financial loss. The Company cannot expect to eliminate all operational 
risks, but it endeavours to manage these risks through a control framework and by monitoring and responding to potential risks. Controls include effective 
segregation of duties, access, authorisation and reconciliation procedures and staff education.

Below are the methodologies and assumptions used to determine fair values for the above financial instruments which are not recorded and measured at
fair value in the financial statements. These fair values were calculated for disclosure purposes only. 

Fair value

Fair value

Particulars

Particulars
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Financial instrument (continued)

Short-term �inancial assets and liabilities

Borrowings

Loans, Dealer trade advances and other receivables

Investments

Transfers between levels I and II
There has been no transfer in between level I and level II.

Capital management

Capital management

As at 
31 March 

2024

As at 
31 March 

2023
9,254.04        5,088.46          

320.99           434.93             

8,933.05        4,653.53          

5,321.60        2,140.08          

1.68               2.17                 

Regulatory capital *

As at 
31 March 

2024

As at 
31 March 

2023
5,242.28        2,131.37          
2,621.14        1,066.00          

7,863.42      3,197.37        

15,461.87     7,389                 
33.90% 28.85%
16.95% 14.42               

The Company manages its capital to ensure that the Company will be able to continue as going concerns while maximizing the return to stakeholders 

The Company has not disclosed the fair values for financial instruments which are short term in nature because their carrying amounts are a reasonable
approximation of fair value.

The debt securities, borrowings and subordinated liabilities are primarily variable rate instruments. Accordingly, the fair value has been assumed to be
equal to the carrying amount.

The fair values of loans and receivables are estimated by discounted cash �low models that incorporate assumptions for credit risks, foreign exchange risk,
probability of default and loss given default estimates. 

Investment in preference shares had been taken as Level II.

The Company maintains an actively managed capital base to cover risks inherent in the business and is meeting the capital adequacy requirements of the
local banking supervisor, Reserve Bank of India (RBI). The adequacy of the Company’s capital is monitored using, among other measures, the regulations
issued by RBI.

The Company has complied in full with all its externally imposed capital requirements over the reported period. Equity share capital and other equity are
considered for the purpose of Company’s capital management.

Tier 1 capital consists of shareholders' equity and retained earnings. Tier II Capital consists of general provision and loss reserve against standard assets
and subordinated debt (subject to prescribed discount rates and not exceeding 50% of Tier I). Tier 1 and Tier II has been reported on the basis of Ind AS
financial information.

* The above computations are as per IND AS. RBI related accounting implications on account of IND AS adoption are not considered in the above
computations, as RBI is yet to provide guidance on Ind AS implications in CRAR computations. 

The primary objectives of the Company’s capital management policy are to ensure that the Company complies with externally imposed capital requirements 

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued capital and other equity reserves. The primary objective of the Company’s 
The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it according to changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of its 

The company monitors capital using adjusted net debt (total borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents) to equity ratio.

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants
attached to the interest bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in financial covenants would permit the bank to
immediately call loans and borrowings. 

Carrying amountParticulars

Tier I Capital
Tier II Capital
Total Capital

Risk weighted assets
Tier I Capital Ratio (%)
Tier II Capital Ratio (%)

Particulars

Gross debt
Less:
Cash and cash equivalents

Adjusted net debt 

Total equity

Adjusted net debt to equity ratio
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Financial instrument (continued)

As at 
31 March 2024

As at 
31 March 2023

13,085.10                     6,161.41                     
88.07                              55.00                           

12,997.03                   6,106.41                   

Staging:

Days past dues
status Stage

Current Stage 1
1-60 Days Stage 1
61-150 Days Stage 2
150+ Days Stage 3

Stages
Stage 1
Stage 2
Stage 3

Expected credit loss ("ECL"):

a. Probablity of default ("PD")
b. Loss given default ("LGD")
c. Exposure at default ("EAD")
d. Discount factor ("D")

Probablity of default:

EAD:

ECL computation:
Conditional ECL at DPD pool level was computed with the following method:
Conditional ECL for year (yt) = EAD (yt) * conditional PD (yt) * LGD (yt) * discount factor (yt)

As at 
31 March 2024

As at 
31 March 2023

0.49% 0.50%
3.29% 4.01%

40.00% 40.00%
88.07                            55.00                          

Lifetime Provision

The Company’s exposure to credit risk for loans and advances by type of counterparty is as follows. All these exposures are within India. 

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date based on the facts and circumstances existing on that date to identify expected losses on account of time
value of money and credit risk. For the purposes of this analysis, the loan receivables are categorised into groups based on days past due. Each group is then assessed
for impairment using the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model as per the provisions of Ind AS 109 - �inancial instruments.

As per the provision of Ind AS 109 general approach all financial instruments are allocated to stage 1 on initial recognition. However, if a significant increase in credit
risk is identified at the reporting date compared with the initial recognition, then an instrument is transferred to stage 2. If there is objective evidence of impairment,
then the asset is credit impaired and transferred to stage 3.

The Company considers a financial instrument defaulted and therefore Stage 3 (credit-impaired) for ECL calculations in all cases when the borrower becomes 90 days
past due on its contractual payments.

For financial assets in stage 1, the impairment calculated based on defaults that are possible in next twelve months, whereas for financial instrument in stage 2 and
stage 3 the ECL calculation considers default event for the lifespan of the instrument.

As per Ind AS 109, Company assesses whether there is a significant increase in credit risk at the reporting date from the initial recognition. Company has staged the
assets based on the Day past dues criteria and other market factors which significantly impacts the portfolio.

Provisions

12 Months Provision
12 Months Provision

Particulars

(I) Retail loans
Less : Impairment loss allowance
Total

The calculation is based on provision matrix which considers actual historical data adjusted appropriately for the future expectations and probabilities. Proportion of 
expected credit loss provided for across the stage is summarised below:

Lifetime Provision

ECL on �inancial assets is an unbiased probablity weighted amount based out of possible outcomes after considering risk of credit loss even if probblity is low. ECL is 
calaculated based on the following components:

PD is defined as the probablity of whether borrowers will default on their obligations in the future.

LGD:
LGD is an estimate of the loss from a transaction given that a default occurs. Under Ind AS 109, lifetime LGD's are defined as a collection of LGD's estimates applicable to
different future periods. Various approaches are available to compute the LGD. The Company has considered the workout LGD approach by considering the probable
losses and recoveries as it doesnt have any historical data in this regard.

As per Ind AS 109, EAD is estimation of the extent to which the financial entity may be exposed to counterparty in the event of default and at the time of counterparty's
default. The Company has modelled EAD based on the contractual and behaviourial cash �lows till the lifetime of the loans considering the expected prepayments.

Company’s internal credit rating grades and staging criteria for loans are as follows:
 Loans Days past due (DPD) including the due date 

No Overdue and 1- 60 DPD
61-150 DPD (March 31, 2023 - 61- 180 DPD)
151 DPD or More (March 31, 2023 - 181 DPD or More)

Particulars
Standard grade
Sub-standard grade
Non- performing Individually impaired 

Stage

Stage 1
Stage 2
Stage 3
Amount of expected credit loss provided for

Provisions

12 month provision
Lifetime provision
Lifetime provision
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in Lakh of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Asset 
Classification as 

per Ind AS 109

Gross Carrying 
Amount as per 

Ind AS

Loss Allowances 
(Provisions) as 

required under Ind 
AS 109

Net Carrying 
Amount

Provisions required 
as per IRACP norms

Difference between Ind 
AS 109 provisions and 

IRACP norms

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5)=(3)-(4) (6) (7)=(4)-(6)
Performing Assets

Stage 1 12,909.85              63.20                          12,846.65          32.32                               30.88                                       
Stage 2 123.20                    4.06                             119.15                0.31                                  3.75                                          

Subtotal 13,033.05             67.25                         12,965.80        32.62                              34.63                                      
Non-Performing Assets (NPA)
Substandard Stage 3 35.63                       14.25                          21.38                  3.56                                  10.69                                       
Doubtful- upto 1 year Stage 3 16.42                       6.57                             9.85                     3.28                                  3.28                                          

1 to 3 years Stage 3 -                           -                               -                       -                                    -                                            
More than 3 yrs Stage 3 -                           -                               -                       -                                    -                                            

Subtotal for doubtful 52.05                      20.82                         31.23                 6.85                                 13.97                                      
Loss Stage 3 -                      -                                           

Subtotal for NPA 52.05                      20.82                         31.23                 6.85                                 13.97                                      

Stage 1 -                           -                               -                       -                                    -                                            
Stage 2 -                           -                               -                       -                                    -                                            

Stage3 -                           -                               -                       -                                    -                                            
Subtotal -                           -                               -                       -                                    -                                            

Stage 1 12,909.85              63.20                          12,846.65          32.32                               30.88                                       
Stage 2 123.20                    4.06                             119.15                0.31                                  3.75                                          
Stage 3 52.05                       20.82                          31.23                  6.85                                  13.97                                       
Total 13,085.10             88.07                         12,997.03        39.47                              48.60                                      

Provision as per IRACP norms is taken as 0.25% of the outstanding loans as per RBI circular for Non-Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company.

Asset 
Classification as 

per Ind AS 109

Gross Carrying 
Amount as per 

Ind AS

Loss Allowances 
(Provisions) as 

required under Ind 
AS 109

Net Carrying 
Amount

Provisions required 
as per IRACP norms

Difference between Ind 
AS 109 provisions and 

IRACP norms

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5)=(3)-(4) (6) (7)=(4)-(6)
Performing Assets

Stage 1 5,858.73                 29.44                          5,829.29            14.65                               14.79                                       
Stage 2 265.35                    10.64                          254.71                0.66                                  9.98                                          

Subtotal 6,124.08               40.08                         6,084.00           15.31                              24.77                                      
Non-Performing Assets (NPA)
Substandard Stage 3 20.92                       8.37                             12.55                  2.09                                  6.28                                          
Doubtful- upto 1 year Stage 3 16.41                       6.56                             9.85                     3.28                                  3.28                                          
1 to 3 years Stage 3 -                           -                               -                       -                                    -                                            
More than 3 years Stage 3 -                           -                               -                       -                                    -                                            

Subtotal for doubtful 37.33                      14.93                         22.40                 5.37                                 9.56                                         
Loss Stage 3 -                      -                                           

Subtotal for NPA 37.33                      14.93                         22.40                 5.37                                 9.56                                         

Stage 1 -                           -                               -                       -                                    -                                            
Stage 2 -                           -                               -                       -                                    -                                            

Stage3 -                           -                               -                       -                                    -                                            
Subtotal -                           -                               -                       -                                    -                                            

Stage 1 5,858.73                 29.44                          5,829.29            14.65                               14.79                                       
Stage 2 265.35                    10.64                          254.71                0.66                                  9.98                                          
Stage 3 37.33                       14.93                          22.40                  5.37                                  9.56                                          
Total 6,161.41               55.01                         6,106.40           20.68                              34.33                                      

Note 37 Disclosure pursuant to RBI Notification - RBI/2019-20/170 DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.No.109/22.10.106/2019-20 Dated 13 March 2020

- A comparison between provisions required under Income recognition, asset classification and provisioning (IRACP) and impairment allowances as per 
Ind AS 109 ‘Financial instruments

Standard Assets

Other Items such as guarantees, 
loan commitments, etc. which are 
in the scope of Ind AS 109 but not 
covered under current Income 
Recognition, Asset Classification 
and Provisioning (IRACP) norms

Total

Standard Assets

Other Items such as guarantees, 
loan commitments, etc. which are 
in the scope of Ind AS 109 but not 
covered under current Income 
Recognition, Asset Classification 
and Provisioning (IRACP) norms

Total

March 31, 2024

Asset Classification as per RBI 
Norms

March 31, 2023

Asset Classification as per RBI 
Norms
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in Lakh of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Note 38 Movement of credit impaired loans under IND AS

Sr No Particulars  March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(i) Credit impaired loans under Ind-AS (Net) to Loans (Net) (%) 0.40% 0.61%
(ii) Movement of Credit impaired loans under Ind-AS (Gross)

a) Opening balance 37.33                    53.33                   
b) Additions during the year 28.00                    20.00                   
c) Reductions during the year 13.28                    36.00                   
d) Closing balance 52.05                    37.33                   

(iii) Movement of Credit impaired loans under Ind-AS (Net)
a) Opening balance 22.40                    32.00                   
b) Additions during the year 8.83                      
c) Reductions during the year 9.60                      
d) Closing balance 31.23                    22.40                   

(iv) Movement of impairment loss allowance on credit impaired loans
a) Opening balance 14.93                    21.33                   
b) Impairment loss allowance made during the year 5.89                      -                        
c) Write-off / write-back of excess allowance -                        6.40                      
d) Closing balance 20.82                    14.93                   

Note 39 Provisions and Con�ngencies

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

20.82                      14.93                      
-                          -                          

19.97                      5.19                        
-                          -                          

16.72                      2.72                        
36.31                      3.58                        
67.25                      40.07                      

Note 41 Draw down from Reserves
There are no drawdown reserves from statutory reserves during the year.

  Provision for litigation

Particulars 
Break-up of Provision and contingencies in statement of pro�it and loss 
  Provision towards NPA
  Provisions for depreciation on Investment
  Provision made towards current tax

e) The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement
f) No Registration or satisfaction of charges are pending to be �iled with ROC
g)  No transaction with the companies struck off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of 
Companies Act, 1956

  Provision for Gratuity
  Provision for compensated absences

Note 40 The disclosure on the following ma�ers required under Schedule III as amended not being relevant or 
applicable in case of the company, same are not covered such as

a) The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the �inancial year
b) There are no undisclosed transaction which have not been recorded in the books.
c) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property under
 the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

d) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or �inancial institution or government or any 
 

  Provision for Standard Assets
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in Lakh of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

 Sr No.  March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
 a) 

 Name of the Company
Amount 

b) 
Name of the Company 
Amount 

c) 
Name of the Company
Amount

d) 

The Company is not registered under any other regulator other than Reserve Bank of India.

There are no overseas asset owned by the Company.

Note 48 Advances Against Intangible Securi�es
The Company has not given any loans against intangible securi�es.

Sl No  March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

1

3,934.55                       3,099.69                      

793.62                          606.91                         

4,525.87                       1,381.86                      

2

3

11,776.86                    6,072.78                      
1,202.56                       59.47                            

but not paid:(*)
(a) Debentures

 - Secured (*)

(e) Commercial Paper

Liabili�es side
Loans and Advances availed by the NBFC inclusive of interest accrued thereon

Note 45 Disclosure Pursuant To Regula�on 53(1)(F) Read With Schedule V Of The Securi�es And Exchange Board Of India (Lis�ng Obliga�ons 

Par�culars

Note 46 Registra�on Under Other Regulators

Note 47 Overseas Assets (For Those With Joint Ventures And Subsidiaries Abroad)

Note 49 Details Of Single Borrower Limits (SBL)/ Group Borrower Limits (GBL) Exceeded
The Company has not exceeded the single borrower limits / group borrower limits as set as by Reserve Bank of India.

Note 50 Schedule to the balance sheet of an non-banking financial company pursuant to reserve bank of india no�fica�on rbi/dor/2023-

Investments by the loanee in the shares of parent company and subsidiary company, when 

Loans and advances in the nature of loans to subsidiaries

Loans and advances in the nature of loans to associates

Loans and advances in the nature of loans to firms/companies in which directors are 

Par�culars

Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills receivables [other than those included in (4) below]:

Break-up of (1)(f) above (outstanding public deposit inculsive of interest accrued thereon but not paid

(f) Public Deposits
(g) Subordinated Liabili�es (*)
(*) There is no overdue

 - Unsecured (*)
(other than falling within the meaning of public deposits)
(b) Deferred Credits
(c) Borrowings (Other than debt securi�es) (*) 
(d) Inter-corporate loans and borrowing

(a) In the form of unsecured debenture
(b) In the form of partly secured debenture i.e. debenture where there is shor�all in the 

(c) Other public deposits - -

Assets side:

(a) Secured
(b) Unsecured

Annual Report 2023- 2024 135

CORPORATE OVERVIEW STATUTORY REPORTS FINANCIAL STATEMENTCORPORATE OVERVIEW STATUTORY REPORTS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



4

6

27.42                            37.71                            

27.42                            37.71                            

11,749.44                    6,035.07                      
1,202.56                       59.47                            

12,952.00                    6,094.54                      

Borrower group-wise classifica�on of assets financed as in (3) and (4) above: (Amount net of provisions)

Break up of Leased Assets and stock on Hire and other assets coun�ng towards asset financing ac�vi�es.

2. Other than Related Par�es
i. Secured
ii. Unsecured

Total

(i) Lease Assets including lease rentals sundry debtors:
a) Financial Lease
b) Opera�ng Lease

(ii) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors:
a) Assets on hire
b) Repossessed Assets

(iii) Other loans coun�ng towards asset financing ac�vi�es

v. Others (please specify)

iv. Government Securi�es
v. Others (please specify)

Current Investments:

v. Others (please specify)

I. Quoted:

1. Related Par�es
(a) Subsidiaries

 i. Secured
 ii. Unsecured

Total
(b) Companies in the same Group

 i. Secured
 ii. Unsecured

Total
(c) Other Related Par�es

 i. Secured
 ii. Unsecured

Total

 a) Equity

iv. Government Securi�es

II. Unquoted:
i. Shares

II. Unquoted:
i. Shares

a) Equity
b) Preference

ii. Debentures and Bonds

a) Loans where assets have been repossessed
b) Loans other than (a) above - -

I. Quoted:
i. Shares

a) Equity

b) Preference

i. Shares
a) Equity

Long Term Investments:

iii. Units of Mutual Funds
iv. Government Securi�es

5 Break-up of Investments (net of provision for diminu�on in value):

v. Others (please specify)

b) Preference
ii. Debentures and Bonds
iii. Units of Mutual Funds
iv. Government Securi�es

ii. Debentures and Bonds
iii. Units of Mutual Funds

b) Preference
ii. Debentures and Bonds
iii. Units of Mutual Funds
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7

8

52.05                            37.33                            

20.82                            14.93                            

Investor group-wise classifica�on of all investments (current and long term) in shares and securi�es (both quoted and unquoted)

Other Informa�on

i. Market Value / Break up or fair value or NAV
ii. Book Value (Net of Provisions)

(c) Other Related Par�es
i. Market Value / Break up or fair value or NAV
ii. Book Value (Net of Provisions)

1. Related Par�es
(a) Subsidiaries

i. Market Value / Break up or fair value or NAV
ii. Book Value (Net of Provisions)

(b) Companies in the same Group

(b) Other than related par�es
(iii) Assets Acquired in sa�sfac�on of debt

(i) Gross credit impaired assets
(a) Related par�es
(b) Other than related par�es

(ii) Net credit impaired assets
(a) Related par�es

2. Other than Related Par�es
i. Market Value / Break up or fair value or NAV
ii. Book Value (Net of Provisions)
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in Lakh of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
-                                                -                                           

27.42                                           37.71                                       
-                                                -                                           

Note 52 Miscellaneous 
i) Registration obtained from other �inancial sector regulators

ii) Disclosure of Penalties imposed by RBI and other regulators

Note 54 Subsequent events
There are no signi�icant subsequent events that have occurred after the reporting period till the date of these �inancial statements.

Note 55 Previous year �igures

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors of
Supra Paci�ic Financial Services limited

Joby George Abidh Abubakkar
Chairman Cum Managing Director Executive Director
(DIN:06429801) (DIN:08569590)

Jithin George Leena Yezhuvath
Chief Financial Of�icer Company Secretary & 

Compliance Of�icer

Place: Kochi
Date :  May 29, 2024

Note 51 Disclosures as required under Appendix of Loans and Advances- Regulatory restrictions- NBFC- Base Layer(BL) as per Circular 
issued by RBI vide noti�ication no.RBI/2022-23/29 DOR.CRE.REC.No.25/03.10.001/2022-23 dated April 19, 2022

a) No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the 
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend to or invest in other persons or entities identi�ied in any 
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Bene�iciaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Bene�iciaries.

b) No funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the 
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend to or invest in other persons 
or entities identi�ied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Bene�iciaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or 
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Bene�iciaries.

Registration No.
Certi�icate of Registration no : 13. 01238
L74140MH1986PLC039547
9845008E4D5BF94Q4A04
FIUREID : FINBF11240

Loans to Directors, Senior Officers and rela�ves of Directors                                                                                                                 

iii) Loan against gold portfolio to Total assets is 56.32% (Previous year 40.23%)

Note 53 Disclosures as required under Companies( Audit and Auditors) Amendment Rules, 2021

Directors and their relatives
Entities associated with directors and their relatives
Senior Of�icers and their relatives

Regulator
Reserve Bank of India
Ministry of Corporate Affairs
LEI Number

Previous year �igures have been  regrouped / re-classi�ied wherever necessary to conform current year's classi�ication.

Ministry of Finance (Financial Intelligence Unit - India (FIU-IND))

a) No penalty has been Imposed by BSE during the year ended 31st March, 2024 and 31st March, 2023
b) No Penalty  has been imposed by RBI during the year ended 31st March, 2024 and 31st March, 2023
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